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Overview
Information
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Viethamese name: Céng ty Cé6 phan Thuong mai Xuat nhap khau Thién Nam 1

Trading name: Thien Nam Group

International name: Thien Nam Trading - Import Export Joint Stock Company

Business registration certificate number: 0301172041 issued by the Department
of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City on November 01, 2000, 26th issue
on February 16, 2023.

Stock code: TNA

Charter capital: 495,762,640,000 VND

Address: 111 - 121 (11th - 12th floors) Ngo Gia Tu Ward 2, District 10, Ho Chi Minh City

Phone number: (028) 3834.8980

Fax: (028) 3834.8983

Website: thiennamgroup.vn
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Formation
Development process

2017 The company issued 2,487,390 bonus

2000 | Date November 01,2000, Thien Nam Trading

- Import Export Joint Stock Company was a0t b1 e ci Han shares, increasing its charter capital to
. . | THINE LLF . .

successfully converted into a joint-stock TV A PHEN TH-XNE THIEN NAN = 125,921,670,000 VND. It established Saigon

company, the first district-level trade and y "3 ' ' 2019 168 Business Development Joint Stock

service enterprise in Ho Chi Minh City to Company (Thién Nam Land).

implement the Government's policy on
EstablishedThienNamEducationInvestment

equitization of state-owned enterprises.
Corporation, with 68% of the charter capital

belonging to Thien Nam Group. The charter
2005 | On July 20, 2005, Thien Nam Group shares ' : T T capital was increased to 301,272,960,000
. were listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock - VND and later to 345940,600,000 VND.

Exchange, with a charter capital of 13 billion Established Nahaviwel Joint Stock Company,
VND

with 65% of the charter capital belonging to
Thien Nam Group.

2020 . Increased charter capital to 397,308,840,000 ..
VND. Introduced a new logo and updated the

- Thién Nam Group brand identity. Adjusted
2021 the capital contribution ratio at Thién Nam

Food: Thien Nam Group now holds 51% of the

2007 ' The company successfully issued 2 million
shares, increasing its charter capital to 33

= billion VND.
charter capital.

2009 ! The company’s revenue exceeded 700 billion

VND, ranking it among the top 500 largest Issued 9,845,380 shares as dividend payment

private enterprises in Vietnam. The company for the year 2020.

also established Thien Nam Foodstuff Increased charter capital to 495,762,640,000

Technology Company Limited, in which VND.

Thien Nam holds 80% of the charter capital.

2022 I Constructed the Nahaviwel factory. Adjusted
- the capital contribution ratio at Thien Nam

2010 The inauguration of the Commercial
and Office Building at 277B Cach
Mang Thang Tam, Ward 12, District 10.

Land: Thien Nam Group owns 47.53% of the

charter capital.

2023 | Opened Dong Nai Steel Business Center.
- Adjusted the capital contribution ratio at

2016 |

The company issued 2]04,777 bonus NAHAVIWEL Joint Stock Company: Thien

shares, increasing its charter capital to Nam Group owns 94.5% of the charter capital.

101,047,770,000 VND. Revenue exceeded
3,000 billion VND, with profits surpassing 2024 | Appointed senior personnel as the new

100 billion VND. General Director and Chief Accountant.
Built an organizational operating apparatus
according to a centralized management
model, streamlining the apparatus to suit

the company’s business operations.

9 | Annual Report 2024 General information | 10



Business lines
And locations

Business lines

The company operates based on main business lines

Trading in iron and steel Real estate Trading in electronics Education Food Technology - Welding materials
Thien Nam food

Iron and steel is one of the 5 Office leasing and real estate Not only stopping at long- In the field of Education, Thien Nam Food Technology NAHAVIWEL  Joint  Stock

key business lines of Thien Nam projects are also one of Thien standing key economic Thien Nam Group wishes to Company Limited in 2009. Company is a manufacturer

Group. This is also a business line Nam'’s main business areas. sectors, Thien Nam is gradually bring a healthy development of welding materials, a

. . . . . . Bringing world-renowned Food
with a long history and creates expanding its business environment to the future ging

Includes a system of modern

package supplier of welding
Technology products with high

the brand of Thien Nam today. scope into many other fields. young generation, nurturing and mechanical - electrical
. . office buildings for lease with : . . ., . uality and stylish designs , . .
Thien Nam steel is currently a g Including operations in the the qualities of children from a 9 Y Y d materials in  Vietnam. The
. . . high-class interior equipment . . — . — . .
leading supplier specializing field of electronics: distributor young age. Thien Nam Group luxurious designs, affordable distribution system is present
. . and utility services that bring a . . . ' . . o
in  providing many types of of  reputable  electronics has established Thien Nam prices to Viethamese consumers in all provinces and cities in
. professional office environment. . . . .
steel products and welding rod products from leading brands Education Investment Joint and jointly making the Vietham and exports to 30
. . Developing and investing in land . . .
materials for the steel industry, in the world, providing for Stock Company and South community’s life better. countries around the world.
. . plot projects and complexes . . . .
infrastructure, construction, etc. high-end apartment projects Sky  Kindergaten  Bilingual
The company mainly operates in in the market. Kindergarten - A unique school
the field of steel trading and real applying the Reggio Emilla
estate business. Company Education Philosophy.

currently owns more than 10
locations in many different
locations in Ho Chi Minh City,
and is currently investing in the
construction of office buildings

for sale and lease
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Dong Nai and Long An

And locations (Continued)

Business lines
The company mainly operates in Ho Chi Minh City,

Business location
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Governance model

Business organization and management apparatus

Governance model

Ho6i dong quan tri
THE BOARD OF DERICTORS
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GENERAL DIRECTOR
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Governance model
Business organization and management apparatus (Continued)

Subsidiaries, Affiliated companies

NAHAVIWEL
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Thien Nam Building, 111 - 112 Ngo Gia Tu,
Ward 2, District 10, Ho Chi Minh City

Business lines: Manufacturing welding rods,
welding wires, welding materials, Wholesaling
machinery, equipment and industrial spare parts

Charter capital: 90,000,000,000 VND (90 Billion
VND)

Ownership ratio of Thien Nam Group: 98.78%
Charter capital

17 | Annual Report 2024

e

S$TUTH SKEV

THIEN NAM EDUCATION
INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Address: Thien Nam Building, 111 - 112 Ngo Gia
Tu, Ward 2, District 10, Ho Chi Minh City

Business lines: Developing services related to
education

Charter capital: 80,000,000,000 VND (80
Billion VND)

Ownership ratio of Thien Nam Group: 68%
Charter capital

W
'I'I"ﬂlzlhl

THIEN NAM FOODSTUFF
TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Address: Thien Nam Building, 111-121 Ngo Gia
Tu, Ward 2, District 10, Ho Chi Minh City

Business lines: Trading and dealing in food
technology products

Charter capital: 15,000,000,000 VND (15 Billion
VND)

Ownership ratio of Thien Nam Group: 51%
Charter capital

SAI GON 168 TRADING BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Address: Thien Nam Building, 111 - 112 Ngo Gia Tu,
Ward 2, District 10, Ho Chi Minh City

Business lines: Real estate business, Wholesale
distribution of electronics

Charter capital: 425,000,000,000 VND (425 Billion
VND)

Ownership ratio of Thien Nam Group: 47.53%
Charter capital

General information | 18



Development
Orientation

Y 4T - T o T Rt Core values .......................................................................................

Thien Nam Group always aims to become an Enterprise that receives a lot of trust from customers, Integrity: “Honesty, Integrity, Uprightness” in behavior and in all transactions.

investors and partners, building the image of a strong Corporation, always spreading its wings ) ) ) ) ) ) )
S ) ) ) ) ) ) ] ) Fairness: being responsible for acting Fairly with: Employees; Customers; Suppliers; Relevant
wide in the air to rise high, firmly overcoming all challenges, to increasingly develop and achieve

) parties.
many new achievements.

Creativity: pioneering in innovation, always aiming for Truth - Goodness - Beauty as the

foundation for TNA's sustainable development through: thinking; action.

Challenge: be ready to challenge, challenge is an opportunity for development motivation

and success.
Providing products and services with high quality, affirming the reputation of the

Thien Nam brand

Meeting the expectations and trust that shareholders have entrusted

Fully fulfilling the responsibilities of the enterprise towards employees
Fulfilling obligationsto the State and responsibilities to society and the community.

THIENNAM

GROUP

General informa




Risks

Economiic risk

In 2024, the world economy is forecast to continue to grow, but with cautious adjustments from
international organizations. Organizations such as the OECD, IMF and EU have all forecast global GDP
growth of about 3.2%. These forecasts are similar, showing stability in assessing the global economic
outlook. However, there are also organizations that offer different forecasts, such as Fitch Ratings with
a 2.8% forecast and the United Nations with 2.7%. This difference reflects different views on the factors

affecting economic growth.

Global economic growth in 2024 is supported by a number of positive factors. Global merchandise
trade shows signs of stabilization, inflation continues to fall in many countries, and the labor market in
developed countries shows signs of easing. However, the world economy also faces many challenges and
risks. Factors such as geopolitical tensions, conflicts, social instability, commodity price fluctuations, and
issues related to public debt and real estate markets in some countries may negatively affect economic

growth.

In Vietnam, despite many difficulties and challenges, the national economy still maintains stable growth
momentum. According to the General Statistics Office, the country's GDP growth in 2024 is estimated to
increase by 7.09% compared to the previous year, only lower than the growth rate of 2018, 2019 and 2022 in
the 2011-2024 period. In which, according to the Foreign Investment Agency, the Ministry of Planning and
Investment, the total implemented capital of foreign investment projects (FDI) in 2024 is estimated at 25.35
Billion VND, an increase of 9.4% comypared to 23.2 Billion VND in 2023, marking the highest disbursement

level ever.

INn 2024, Thien Nam Group with 2 main business lines, real estate and steel, continues to face an unfavorable
real estate market situation and a sluggish steel market. However, besides the existing difficulties,
businesses in the real estate industry in general and the Company in particular also receive positive signals.
Accordingly, the Government and the State Bank have issued policies to remove difficulties, support and
stimulate the economy, including the disbursement of public investment capital; safe credit growth; The
amended Land Law with clearer regulations on compensation and site clearance procedures will unlock
supply and contribute to helping the real estate market warm up again. Facing the general situation of
the economy in 2024, the Company’'s Board of Directors always closely monitors and updates market
fluctuation information to make quick policies and decisions, in order to bring efficiency to the Company’s

business activities.

21 | Annual Report 2024

Legal risk

Thien Nam Trading - Import Export Joint Stock Company is a public company, so it must comply with
Vietnamese legal regulations such as the Enterprise Law, the Securities Law and related legal documents.
The legal system in Vietnam is still in the process of being completed and is regularly updated and adjusted

to suit the economic situation and practical requirements. Therefore, the Company needs to continuously

monitor changes in legal regulations to promptly adjust operations and minimize unwanted legal risks.

General information | 22



Risks (Continued)

Monetary policy risk

In 2024, fluctuations in the real estate and corporate bond markets, along with people’s concerns about
high gold prices, strongly impacted banking operations. This poses a major challenge for the SBV in
balancing the goals of controlling inflation, supporting economic growth, but ensuring the safety of
banking operations; both reducing interest rates and stabilizing exchange rates. In managing interest
rates,, the State Bank continued to maintain the refinancing and rediscount interest rates at low levels,
creating conditions for credit institutions to reduce lending interest rates in the market. According to the
interest rate report of commercial banks, the general level of lending interest rates by December 2024
decreased by about 0.96%/year compared to the end of 2023. Along with the US Federal Reserve (FED)
cutting interest rates 3 times in a row from September 2024, it has contributed to bringing the general
level of deposit interest rates of commercial banks to maintain at a stable low level in 2024. Regarding
credit growth, as of December 13, 2024, credit to the entire economy increased by about 12.5% compared
to the end of 2023. In which, the SBV has twice adjusted the credit growth target for credit institutions
on August 28 and November 28 to promptly meet capital for the economy and support production and

business.

For Thien Nam Group, in 2024, the company’s leadership regularly updates and re-evaluates loans based on
national interest rate market developments, proactively making reasonable adjustments between short-

term and long-term loan capital sources, and implementing conversions when necessary to optimize

costs for the business.

l,,fl’,'!"""""r

23| Annual Report 2024

Risks in the Iron and Steel business

In 2023, our country’s steel industry witnessed a sharp decline due to the frozen real estate market and
reduced construction projects, in addition to being affected by the weakening of the Chinese industry.
However, from the end of 2023 to the beginning of 2024, the steel industry has received initial recovery
signals. Regarding the steel consumption situation, according to the Vietnam Steel Association (VSA),
in 2024 it reached 29.09 Million tons, an increase of 10.4% over the same period, of which construction
steel increased by 9.3%. However, these are only initial signs of recovery, this recovery is still uncertain
and unsustainable due to consumption demand not really breaking through. In addition, the world steel
industry still faces many difficulties due to the negative impact from the Chinese steel crisis. Accordingly,
cheap steel from China and India is creating great competitive pressure for domestic steel businesses.
Specifically, imports of finished steel products of all kinds into Vietnam are about 17.713 Million tons with a
value of more than 12.583 Billion USD, an increase of 32.88% in volume and an increase of 20.64% in value

compared to the same period in 2023.

In 2024, the domestic construction steel price situation is under pressure to adjust down from weak
demand and new competition from imported Chinese steel prices. Specifically, the price of CB240 rebar
reached 14.34 Million VND/ton in March 2024, a decrease of about 10.4% compared to the price of around
16 Million VND/ton in the same period in 2023. After 4 months of going sideways due to the steel industry
returning to sluggishness, construction steel prices in 2024 hit bottom in September and began to turn

up slightly again after the rainy season ended.

Facing the difficult developments of the steel industry, Thien Nam Group needs to grasp the situation
and come up with effective business strategies. Specifically, the Company focuses on trading domestic
goods, focusing on importing goods with high profit margins, diversifying export partners,and managing
inventory in accordance with steel price developments on the market. In addition, the Company also
needs to improve management and administration quality, optimize costs, and closely monitor the
macroeconomic situation and public investment policies to make accurate forecasts about the market

and steel prices.
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Risks (Continued)

Risks in the Real estate business Other risks

According to the Vietnam Association of Real Estate Brokers (VARS), for the whole year of 2024, the - ) ) ) ) )
) In addition to the risks mentioned, the Company may also face force majeure risks such as natural disasters,
real estate market recorded nearly 81 thousand real estate products for sale, an increase of more ) ] )
) . . . floods, fires, etc. Although these risks do not occur frequently, they can seriously affect the Company’s
than 40% compared to 2023. Accordingly, the supply of residential real estate grew strongly, with ) ) o o
) . . ) ) business operations. Therefore, the Company always focuses on training officials and employees on
large-scale projects opening for sale at the end of the year along with preferential and flexible ] ) S ) )
. . disaster prevention measures to minimize damage to people and property. Purchasing natural disaster
payment policies. In addition, the three Laws related to the real estate market, the Land Law of

) . o insurance is also an important factor that the Company needs to consider to prevent risks and quickly
2024, the Housing Law of 2023 and the Real Estate Business Law of 2023 officially took effect from

recover after an incident.

August 01, 2024, which are expected to have a positive impact, removing legal barriers that have
existed for a long time, creating new momentum to promote the recovery and development of the

domestic real estate market.

For the office for lease market, in 2024, a series of companies agreed to relocate, expand existing
areas, or open new offices. This contributes to creating a new source of demand for the market,
increasing the absorption rate of vacant space in the office market in 2025. Besides, businesses
with good finances also prioritize the option of extending current office space to save costs and
time setting up a new office. According to CBRE Vietnam's Q3/2024 real estate market report, the
Ho Chi Minh City office market has 02 new Grade B buildings completed in District 1and in the Tan
Thuan Export Processing Zone, District 7, bringing the total office space for rent in Ho Chi Minh City
to over 1.7 million m2. This poses a risk for existing businesses, as most new office buildings have
better standards in terms of both floor space and building technical conditions. Furthermore, with
strong economic growth, the office for lease market is recording many new trends such as working

from home models, applying technology in the workspace, and green office projects.

Given the above context, Thien Nam Group continuously captures updated market information and
improves product quality by maintaining, upgrading old premises, and improving service quality
to retain customers. In addition, the Company also plans to seek and invest in new offices, and
exploit new types of products such as shared offices and service offices suitable for the needs of the
central area of Ho Chi Minh City. Not only that, Thien Nam Group needs to launch many promotions

and provide many incentives to attract new tenants, strengthen advertising and communications

to quickly fill the vacant premises of the buildings.
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List of
the Board of Directors

List of Board of Directors’ members

No.

Member of the

Board of Directors

Note
Position (Independent member/
executive/non-executive)

Number of shares and
ownership ratio

8,559,569 shares, representing

1 Nguyen Quang Hoa Chairman Non-executive .
17.27% of charter capital
) 0 shares, representing 0.00% of
2 Ho Van Tuyen Member Independent non-executive .
charter capital
) ) 2000 shares, representing
3 Nguyen Minh Thu Member Executive

0.0001% of charter capital

Changes in the Board of Directors

1

Members of Board of Directors

Date of appointment

Date of discharge

Tran Thi Hien - 29/6/2024

2

Nguyen Tran Thao Huong - 29/6/2024

Curriculum vitae of Board of Directors’ members

Year of birth: 1968

Nationality: Vietnamese
Mr. Nguyen Quang Hoa Y

Chai f the BOD
alrman of the Education level: 12/12

Qualification: University degree in physical education and sports
Current position atthe Company: Chairman of the Board of Directors

Currentpositioninotherorganizations:Chairmanofthe BOD of Thien
Nam Hoa Service Trading JSC, Chairman of the Board of Members of
Thien Nam Foodstuff Technology Co. Ltd, BOD' members of Sai Gon
168 Trading Business Development Corporation, Chairman of the
BOD of Thien Nam Education Investment Corporation, Chairman of
the BOD of NAHAVIWEL JSC

Number of personal shares currently held: 8,559,569 shares,

accounting for 17.27% of charter capital

Number of shares held by affiliated persons at the present time:

11,880,602 shares - accounting for 23.96% of the charter capital

291 Annual Report 2024

Mr. Ho Van Tuyen
Member of the BOD

Mr. Nguyen Minh Thu
Member of the BOD,
Deputy General Director

Year of birth: 1972
Nationality: Vietnamese
Education level: 12/12

Qualification: Bachelor of Economics from Ho Chi Minh City
University of Economics, M.Sc. in Business Administration from
Gloucestershire University — UK, Dr. in Business Administration
(DBA) International American University — US, M.Sc. in Finance and
Chief Financial Officer - Min MBA-AAFM Program

Current position at the Company: Board of Directors’ member

Current position in other organizations: Chairman of the Board
of Directors at Rim Investment Joint Stock Company, Board of

Directors’ member of Rang Dong Plastics Joint Stock Company

Number of personal shares currently held: O shares - accounting for
0.00% of charter capital

Number of shares held by affiliated persons at the present time:

None

Year of birth: 1974

Nationality: Vietnamese

Education level: 12/12

Qualification: Bachelor of Economics

Current position at the Company: Board of Directors’ member,

Deputy General Director

Current position in other organizations: Board of Directors’ member
of Sai Gon 168 Trading Business Development Corporation, Board of

Directors’ member of CP Nahaviwel Company.

Number of personal shares currently held: 2000 shares - accounting
for 0.0001% of charter capital

Number of shares held by affiliated persons at the present time:

None
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List of
Audit Committee

List of Audit Committee member

Member of the Number of shares and

No. Position

Audit Committee ownership ratio

i ) ) O shares, accounting for 0.00% of
1 Mr. Ho Van Tuyen Chairman of the Audit Committee )
charter capital

List of
Board of Management

List of Board of Management member

Member of the Number of shares and

No. Board of Management Position ownership ratio

. . O shares, representing 0.00% of
1 Mr. Nguyen Van Nghia General Director .
Charter capital

Changes in the Audit Committee

No. | Member of the Audit Committee | Date of appointment Date of discharge

1 Nguyen Tran Thao Huong 29/06/2024

2000 shares, representing 0.0001%

2 Mr. Nguyen Minh Thu Deputy General Director .
of charter capital

Curriculum vitae of Audit Committee’s member

1.

Mr. Nguyen Quang Hoa
Chairman of the BOD

Please refer to the Board of Directors section
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Changes in Board of Management

Member of the
Board of Management

Date of appointment Date of discharge

1 Mr. Nguyen Van Nghia 10/07/2024 -

Curriculum vitae of the Board of Management’s member

( Year of birth: 1973

. Nationality: Viethamese
Mr. Nguyen Van Nghia Y

1. General Director

Education level: 12/12

Qualification: Bachelor of Economics

Current position at the Company: General Director
Current position in other organizations: None
Number of personal shares currently held: None

Number of shares held by affiliated persons at the present time:

None

Mr. Nguyen Minh Thu
Member of the BOD,
Deputy General Director

Please refer to the Board of Directors section
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Number of
Officers and employees

Average income

Year 2024
Criteria
Quantity (people) Proportion (%) Year ‘ 2022 ‘ 2023 ‘ 2024

| By labor level Total number of employees (people) 72 73 36
[ T el PR RS e 2! ~8 Average income of employees (VND/person) 23,722,967 13,199,842 14,000,000
2 College level, professional secondary school 5 13

3 Elementary and Technical Workers 2 6

4 Unskilled workers 8 22

1 By gender - - "-‘
1 Male 21 58

2 Female 15 41

1 By term of labor contract

1 Short-term contracts under 1year 2 6
2 Fixed-term contracts from 1to 3 years 9 25
3 Indefinite-term contracts 25 69

\Y) By management level

1 Senior management 3 8
2 Middle management 6 17
3 Branch-level management 0 0
4 Specialists, staff 27 75
\" By age

1 From 18 to 25 years old 0 0
2 From 26 to 35 years old 1 3
3 From 36 to 45 years old 13 36
4 Over 45 22 61
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Policy

For employees
Remuneration and benefits policy Employee training and development policy
Thien Nam always focuses on building comprehensive welfare and remuneration policies to protect the At Thien Nam, the company always pays special attention to improving the capacity of its staff through
legitimate rights and improve the lives of its staff and employees. We aim to create a cohesive working well-organized and in-depth training programs. From the moment they join, each employee will
environment that promotes the dedication and long-term commitment of each member of the Thien participate in a training program specifically designed to suit their expertise and essential soft skills for
Nam collective. the job position. These programs harmoniously combine theoretical and practical knowledge, helping

employees quickly master their expertise as well asimprove the necessary skills to meet job requirements.
Regarding remuneration policies, the company applies a bonus mechanism based on work performance,

ensuring transparency, fairness, and encouraging employees to maximize their capabilities. In addition, In addition, Thien Nam also regularly organizes short-term training courses on soft skills, including
Thien Nam also implements many other bonus policies such as holiday bonuses, Tet bonuses, seniority communication, leadership, teamwork, etc.,, to support employees in developing comprehensively
bonuses, excellent achievement bonuses, etc. to recognize the contributions of employees. and perfecting their professional style. With an effective training policy, the company is committed to

providing an optimal development environment, where each employee has the opportunity to unlock

Thien Nam always pays attention to welfare, especially the health and spiritual life of its staff. The company their potential and contribute positively to the overall development of the business

maintains an annual periodic health check program and encourages employees to participate in sports,

..................................................................................................................

cultural, and recreational activities to improve both physical and mental well-being.

In addition, we regularly organize events such as birthday parties, teambuilding activities, and resort

vacations to connect the collective and create a friendly, dynamic, and enthusiastic working environment.

Safety and labor protection policy

At Thien Nam, the safety of employees is always a top priority. The company is committed to creating a
safe and healthy working environment by: providing adequate equipment for work; ensuring the office
has a system of lighting, water source, machinery, uniforms, labor protection and stationery, etc., to meet
Recruitment pOIicy the needs of work; fully equipping fire prevention and fighting equipment such as fire extinguishers, fire

alarm systems and organizing periodic training on fire prevention and fighting for employees; conducting

At Thien Nam, we design recruitment policies regular inspection and maintenance of equipment and machinery; building and strictly implementing

suitable for each job position to ensure that labor safety procedures; and organizing labor safety training courses for new employees as well as

the selection process focuses on the most periodically for the entire team. In addition, the company also has a reward system for individuals and

important competencies and qualities. Thanks collectives with excellent achievements in ensuring labor safety. Thanks to constant efforts, Thien Nam

to a rigorous and thorough recruitment process, is building a safe and reliable working environment, helping employees feel secure in their work and

we seek outstanding candidates who fully meet maximize their capacity.

the requirements for expertise, experience, and

professional work attitude.

.........................................................
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Production
And business activities

Production and business activities

Unit: Million VND

% Year 2024/ Doanh thu ban hang va cung cép dich w h
" b Year
No. Target Year 2023 Year 2024 (*) Year2023

Wl s o cles ) sevies Eievidien 4690,814 1247023 26.58% Doanh thu thuan _

2 A /690,586 1247.023 26:59% G vin hangbin

3 Cost of goods sold 4,552,828 1,213,761 26.66% 0 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000

(triéu dong)
. . o mN3m2024 mNam2023

4 Gross profit on sales and service provision 137,558 33,262 24.18%

5 Net profit from business activities 5mM (60,617) -

6  Profit before corporate income tax 3,767 (61,654) -

(*) Data according to the self-prepared Quarter IV/2024 Financial Statements of the Company

Implementation status compared to plan

Unit: Million VND

Implementation Rate Year

Year 2024
2024 compared to

Indicator Year 2023

Actual(*) 2023 Actual 2024 Plan

1 Revenue 4,690,814 1,479,000 1,247,023 26.58% 84.32%

2 Profit before corporate income tax 3,767 1,000 (61,654) - -

(*) Data according to the self-prepared Quarter IV/2024 Financial Statements of the Company
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Investment situation

Project implementation situation

Major investments

Project
Rose Gardent

Project
Suoi Rao

411 Annual Report 2024

Project name

Project location

Investor’s name

Investment form

Investment objective

Scale

Total investment

Time and progress

Project name

Project location

Investor’s name

Investment form

Investment objective

Scale

Total investment

Time and progress

Rose Garden

Truong Van Hai Street, Hiep Phu Ward, Thu Duc
City

TN9 Construction Trading Service Joint Stock
Company and Thien Nam Land

Cooperation and project development

Apartments and schools

6.09 ha

2,800 Billion VND

Q3/2023 - Q4/2025

Suoi Rao

Suoi Rao Lake, Suoi Rao Commune, Chau Duc
District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province

Thien Nam Land

Cooperation and project development

Villas, resorts

8.88 ha

590 Billion VND

Q2/2023 - Q3/2026

Project
Binh Chanh

Project name

Project location

Investor’s name

Investment form

Investment objective

Scale

Total investment

Time and progress
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Binh Chanh

Vinh Loc B Commune, Binh Chanh District, Ho
Chi Minh City

Thien Nam Land

Cooperation and project development

Infrastructure construction, land plot division for
sale

0.77 ha

125 Billion VND

Q2/2023 - Q2/2025



Investment situation

Project implementation situation

Company'’s subsidiaries, affiliated companies

Content

Content

43| Annual Report 2024

Thien Nam Foodstuff Technology Company Limited

Thien Nam Education Investment Corporation

Expanding new brands to enrich the product portfolio such as Bernique,
Cherque (Malaysia) chocolate brands; expanding the group of dry distribution
foods, seafood, Estrella beer (Spain), distributing spices...

Developing its own food brand named Uiza with a commitment to bringing
customers products with unique value and reasonable prices, helping the
company penetrate the retail market better.

Building an e-commerce sales channel system, gradually completing the
sales distribution chain to serve current needs and future strategies

SSK strives to become a pioneer school in the Reggio Emilia early education
method and form a system of bilingual kindergartens with leading
comprehensive education quality.

INn 2022, the SSK school system was heavily affected by the Covid epidemic but
still maintained good care and teaching of children according to advanced
methods, ensuring the lives of school employees.

Content

Content

Sai Gon 168 Trading Business Development Corporation

NAHAVIWEL Joint Stock Company

Grasping the market situation of welding rods, Nahaviwel has been invested
by Thien Nam Group to build a welding rod factory with a capacity of 200-
300 tons in Duc Hoa district, Long An province. The company boldly invests
in advanced welding machinery and technology to stabilize quality for
export, actively associating and cooperating with many manufacturers and
distributors at home and abroad to enhance the presence and market share
occupation.

Although real estate projects still face difficulties due to the general market
situation, the progress of the projects is still trying to ensure the schedule.
In addition to the successful transfer of the Phuoc Binh project, in general,
the projects are still in a good trend of exploitation in the future when the
real estate market is cleared. For example, the Rose Garden project to build
apartments and schools in District 9 and the Suoi Rao Resort Villa project in
Ba Ria - Vung Tau province.
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Financial

Situation -
Solvency indicators
The Company’s current ratio remains balanced, showing
- that the company has sufficient liquidity to pay off
. short-term debts, slightly increasing from 1.04 times
Key financial indicators o8 in 2023 to 1.05 times in 2024. The quick ratio decreased

06 slightly from 0.40 times to 0.36, in which the Company

o4 has made active efforts in settling short-term accounts

Year 2023 | Year 2024 (*) s payable to sellers in the face of the general difficulties of

the industry.

Year 2023 Year 2024

Solvency indicators

m Current ratio  m Quick ratio

Capital structure indicators

Current ratio Time 1.04 1.05
The Company's Debt/Total Assets ratio at the end of
Quick ratio Time 0.40 036 3 , a5 2024 is 0.76 times, approximately the same as at the
° end of 2023, the Debt/Equity ratio increased slightly
3
. - from 3 times to 3.15 times. In addition to the decrease
Capital structure indicators 25
2 in profit compared to 2023, the Company has made
. . 15 0.75 0.76 great improvements in reducing short-term loans and
Debt/Total Assets Ratio Time 0.75 0.76 1
o settling all long-term debts, advocating limiting the
] ) . o use of financial leverage and reducing dependence on
Debt/Equity Ratio Time 3.00 315 Near 2023 Near 2024

borrowed capital.

m Debt/Total Assets Ratio  m Debt/Equity Ratio

Operational capacity indicators . ...
Operating capacity indicators The Company's inventory turnover decreased from 4.33

times in 2023 to 1.10 times in 2024, due to the Company’s

Inventory turnover Round 4.33 110
slower sales of goods than in previous years due to the

433
Total asset turnover Round 188 0.57 4i difficult economic situation of the industry and weak
35 demand for the steel industry. In addition, the Company
Profitability indicators 2.2 1.88 still actively manages inventory, strives to find export
2 1.10 partners and focuses on domestic business.
15 0.57
After-tax Profit/Net Revenue Ratio % 0.07% - 0.; b Total asset turnover decreased from 1.88 times in 2023

to 0.57 times in 2024, due to the Company’s net revenue

Year 2023 Year 2024

After-tax Profit/Average Equity Ratio % 0.58% - n Inventorytumover Total assettumover decreasing compared to the previous period, but it has

achieved more than 84% of the plan set by the Board of
After-tax Profit/Average Total Assets Ratio % 0.14% - Directors.

Profit from production and business activities/Net revenue ratio % 0.11% - Pl‘Ofltablhty indicators

In 2024, the steel industry still has many fluctuations, from input material prices, weak output markets,
() Data according to the Company’s Q4 2024 (self-prepared) financial statements and reduced output selling prices, while also being under pressure from cheap steel products from China.
This has more or less affected the business results of enterprises in the industry in general and Thien Nam
Group in particular, causing the Company's profits to stagnate during the recession. In addition, thanks
to efforts in corporate governance, the company’s business operations are still stable and maintain its

market share in the office leasing segment in 2024.
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Shareholder structure
Changes in owner’s investment capital

eI <% Stock symbol: TNA

. Total number of issued shares: 49,576,264 shares

THIENNAM + Number of outstanding shares: 49,231,310 shares

GROuURE

49,231,310

Téng s6 ludng
c6 phan phé théng

Number of treasury shares: 344,954 shares

Number of shares restricted from transfer: O shares

A Type of shares: common shares
. dang luu hanh

° Par value per share: 10,000 VND/share

Shareholder structure
(As of: 03/06/2024)

Ownership
Number of Number of
Percentage/Charter

shares ) shareholders
Capital (%)

1 State shareholders - - 0.00%
Il Domestic shareholders 2,538 48,149,020 97.12%
1 Individual 2,520 47,605,472 96.02%
2 Organization 18 543548 110%
1] Foreign shareholders 74 1,082,290 2.18%
1 Individual 60 535,092 1.08%
2 Organization 14 547198 1.10%
v Treasury shares - 344,954 0.70%

Total (1+11+111) 49,576,264 100.00%

Maximum foreign ownership ratio: 0%

471 Annual Report 2024

Status of changes in owners’ investment capital

Thien Nam Trading - Import Export Joint Stock Company officially transformed into a joint-stock
company in 2000 with a charter capital of 13 Billion VND. In 2005, the Company officially listed 1.3

million shares on the Hochiminh City Stock exchanges.

Up to now, after many stock issuances, the Company’s current charter capital is 495,762.64 Million
VND.

Treasury share transactions

None

Other securities

None
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Report on
The company’s environmental and social impacts

Impact on the environment

Thien Nam Group is well aware that, although it does not directly participate in the production process, the
company’s operations still have certain impacts on the environment. Therefore, Thien Nam Group always
puts environmental protection first, considering it a core element in its sustainable development strategy.
The company strictly complies with environmental laws and regulations, and prioritizes the application of

modern technology to minimize resource consumption.

In addition, the company also focuses on training and raising awareness for its staff and employees,
helping them to be able to respond flexibly to emerging environmental issues. These efforts not only help
minimize negative impacts but also contribute to building a business that develops in a sustainable and

environmentally friendly direction.

...................................................................................................................

Management of raw and Energy consumption
material resources

Thien Nam Group is constantly seeking and Thien Nam Group focuses on implementing

implementing modern solutions to optimize electricity saving measures. The company

costs and use energy resources efficiently, prioritizes the use of energy-saving light bulbs,

while maintaining high product quality. In maintains regular inspection and maintenance

particular, the company focuses on improving of electrical equipment, and maximizes the

the transportation process, helping to reduce use of natural light to minimize electricity .

. o . . Water consumption
incurred costs and maximize fuel efficiency. consumption.

Thien Nam Group always prioritizes wastewater treatment, ensuring compliance with environmental
standards. The company has invested in building a synchronous drainage system and cooperates with
specialized units to treat wastewater effectively. As a result, wastewater is treated to meet standards before

being released into the environment, minimizing negative impacts on the ecosystem.

Regarding emission control, the company’s activities do not generate smoke or toxic emissions. However,
Thien Nam Group still focuses on optimizing the natural ventilation system and expanding green spaces
in the workplace. This not only helps improve air quality but also contributes to building a healthy, friendly

and sustainable working environment for all employees.

Compliance with environmental protection laws

Thien Nam always strictly complies with legal regulations related to the environment and has never been
penalized for any violations in this area.
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Report on
The company’s environmental and social impacts

Policies related to employees

Labor policies to ensure the health, safety and welfare of employees - Organization:
Health check-ups once a year for employees.

Caring for female employees on International Women'’s Day March 08, and Vietnamese Women's Day
October 20.

Paying attention to the relatives of employees during vacations organized for employees to go with
their families, taking care of employees’ children on International Children’s Day June 01, and awarding
Nguyen Duc Canh scholarships.
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Report on responsibility to the local community

Thien Nam Group always actively participates in charitable activities and contributes to the community,
especially in 2024. The company has implemented various support programs and donated gifts to people
in difficult circumstances, contributing to easing the burden on society. In addition, Thien Nam Group also
pays attention to the lives of employees. Through the Employee Conference held annually, the Board of
Directors has the opportunity to meet directly with employees to listen to their thoughts and aspirations
and promptly remove obstacles in their work and life. Not only that, the company also regularly organizes

collective activities, creating a healthy exchange environment, connecting employees, and contributing

to building a sustainable corporate culture.
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Evaluation of production and business results

Financial situation

REPORT AND ASSESSMENT OF Improvements in organizational structure, policies, and management
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT Future development plan



Evaluation of
Production and business results

General context for the Company’s 02 main industries

Steel industry situation in 2024 Real estate industry situation in 2024

The steel industry in 2024 continued to experience notable fluctuations: In 2024, the number of transactions in the real estate market continued to grow steadily as the supply

In the first 10 months of 2024, total domestic consumption reached 17 million tons, an increase of 18%
over the same period last year thanks to the growth of construction steel and hot-dip galvanized steel.

The recovery of production was mainly due to a sharp increase in housing supply.

According to the World Steel Association (WSA), global steel production in the first 10 months of 2024
decreased by 1.6% compared to the same period last year due to production cuts in China. China's
blast furnace capacity this year averaged 79% (down from 83% in 2023) to address oversupply and

production losses. In addition, the Chinese government is focusing on the “Net Zero” target by 2050,

improved in both quantity and quality. The demand for real estate, including both housing and investment,
is very high and is constantly increasing along with the rate of urbanization and economic development,
based on a complete legal corridor.
Investment and market situation: FDI capital into Vietnam in 2024 is estimated at 25.35 Billion USD,
an increase of 9.4% compared to 23.2 Billion USD in 2023, marking the highest disbursement ever. In
which, Singapore leads with a total investment of nearly 10.21 Billion USD, accounting for 26.7% of the
total capital. South Korea ranked second with nearly 7.06 Billion USD, accounting for 18.5%. Followed
by China, Hong Kong and Japan.

forcing some major manufacturers to reduce production scale. ) ) o )
Housing and apartment market: the average primary apartment price in Hanoi also grew at a

In 2024, according to the World Steel Association, global steel demand is expected to decrease by 0.9% compound rate of 16% in the period from 2019 to Q3/2024, in Ho Chi Minh City this figure is 19%, due
compared to the same period, mainly due to weakening demand from China, the world'’s largest steel to the scarcity of supply and demand always maintained at a high level. This shows that market
producer, experiencing a real estate market crisis. Steel consumption in China is expected to decrease confidence has gradually returned and investor sentiment has improved significantly, thereby further
by 3% to 883 tons, lower than the level in 2023. Furthermore, some major countries such as the United promoting investment Decisions.

States, Japan and South Korea reported negative growth due to difficulties in the construction industry.

) ) ) ) o In general, Vietham’s real estate industry in 2024 has been more positive with many supporting
Meanwhile, India remains a bright spot for global steel as consumption increased by 8% over the same

. macroeconomic factors, interest rates have returned to attractive levels to stimulate market development,
period to 138 tons. ) ) ) )

the completion of the legal framework will help the market develop sustainably, and at the same time,
In general, the oversupply and low demand are the main reasons leading to the decrease in steel prices there is more motivation to recover from the flow of overseas remittances. The real estate industry is
in 2024, at the same time, each country has its own fluctuations depending on the macroeconomic expected to grow more strongly in 2025.

conditions and industrial policies in the locality before the general situation of the global steel industry.

-




Evaluation of
Production and business results

THIENNAM

GROUP

Foodstuff Technology segment
Steel business segment (Thien Nam Food)

Thien Nam Steel is a leading supplier of a wide range of Introduce a variety of new snack and ready-to-eat food products to

steel products for various industries, including steel for the market under its own brand.

infrastructure, construction, and products such as wire rods,
steel for reinforcement, steel pipes, and other materials for
customers such as manufacturing plants, construction
works, etc. Due to the overall challenges in the steel industry,

the company’s business activities face difficulties, leading to

lower revenue and production in this segment.

................................................................................................................

Kindergarten system segment
Continue enrolling students to optimize classroom capacity and

Real estate and office for lease segment the operational structure to meet international standards.
Office for lease segment

Thien Nam Group manages numerous prime locations, B ettt ettt et
warehouses, and office buildings for lease, consistently
enhancing and upgrading their value to meet customer
needs. Additionally, Thien Nam Group invests in and
develops several large-scale land projects in Ho Chi Minh City
and neighboring provinces. In 2023, the real estate business

Welding material array (Nahaviwel)

remained stable, with the primary revenue source coming

from leasing office buildings. The new welding rod production plant in Long An has been

operational, producing products to meet both domestic and

export market demands. The company will continue to operate

Real estate segment . . .
9 the plant at maximum capacity and actively seek customers

The strategy for 2024 is to continue maintaining the stability both domestically and internationally.

of the office leasing segment, while Thien Nam Group will
focus on completing the legal procedures for its projects and

accelerating the progress of transferring these projects.

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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Improvements in
Organizational structure, policies, and management

In 2024, the Company has carried out a restructuring, adjusted policies and strengthened management to
improve operational efficiency. Besides, despite achieving positive results, the Company still faces a number

of challenges, requiring continued search for optimal solutions to further improve in the future.

591 Annual Report 2024



Financial
Situation

Asset situation

Unit: Million VND

Indicator Year 2023 Proportion 2023 Year 2024 Proportion 2024 | %2024/2023

Short-term assets 1,802,905 77.51% 1,647,733 79.19% 91.39%
Long-term assets 523,014 22.49% 433,067 20.81% 82.80%

Total Assets 2,325,919 22.49% 2,080,800 100.00% 89.46%

Liabilities situation

Unit: Million VND

Indicator Year 2023 Proportion 2023 Year 2024 Proportion 2024 | %2024/2023

Short-term debt 1,732,075 99.30% 1,569,857 99.37% 90.63%
Long-term debt 12,167 0.70% 9,880 0.63% 81.20%

Total liabilities 1,744,242 100.00% 1,579,737 100.00%

Year 2023 Year 2024

R

S 20.81%

m Short-term assets Long-term assets m Short-term assets Long-term assets

As of December 31, 2024, the Company’s total assets decreased from 2,326 Million VND to approximately
2,081 Million VND, a decrease of 10.5% compared to the end of 2023. In which, short-term assets in 2024
accounted for 91.4%, long-term assets accounted for 83% compared to the same period last year. Mainly due

tothe Company’s debt recovery, reducing short-term receivables from customers and financial investments.

Regarding the asset structure at the end of 2024, there was not much change compared to the same
period, with the proportion of short-term assets accounting for mainly more than 79%, slightly increasing
compared to the previous year, long-term assets accounted for about 21%, slightly decreasing compared to
the level of 23% at the end of 2023.
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Year 2023 Year 2024

0,70% 0.63%

99,30% 99.37%

= Short-term debt Long-term debt = Short-term debt Long-term debt

The Company’s total liabilities as of December 31,2024 decreased from more than 1,744 Million VND, reaching
1,580 Million VND, a decrease of 9.4% compared to the same period last year, mainly the company strongly
reduced short-term payables to sellers by approximately 228 Million VND, while reducing short-term loans,
which not only reduces the short-term financial burden but also improves liquidity and reduces interest

rate risk.

Regarding the debt structure, short-term debt still accounts for a large proportion of the company's debt
structure, with 99.37% of total liabilities, long-term debt only accounting for a small portion of the liability
structure at 0.63% on December 31, 2024, and both of these debt groups did not change much compared

to the same period last year.

Report and assessment of the Board of Management | 62



Future
Development plan

Some plans and orientations for key solutions

Expand the sales network and penetrate the market, focusing on customer care for existing
cli-ents as well as developing relationships with new customers, in order to enhance sales

perfor-mance in the country’s key economic regions.

Strengthen forecasting, planning, and sales and inventory management to ensure flexible

busi-ness operations in the face of unpredictable economic fluctuations.

Continue to expand the office leasing market, increase the occupancy rate of new spaces, and
diversify products/services to meet the growing demands of customers.

Optimize office space and amenities for investors and lessors, adjust services, and collaborate
with partner companies. Update and adjust green office operation regulations to meet the
trend of upgrading and renovating old buildings, along with developing customer care policies

and special offers for current clients.

Concentrate all resources on restructuring short-term, medium-term, and long-term capital

sources to ensure financial stability and cash flow for the company’s operations.
Apply information technology to improve operational efficiency within the company.

Build and maintain a stable workforce, while evaluating employee quality and conducting
screening; provide training, coaching, and advancement opportunities for high-performing

em-ployees; and develop training programs for the succession workforce.
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Assessment of the Board of Directors on the Company’s operations

Assessment of the Board of Directors on the operations of the Company’'s Board of
Management

Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors



Assessment of
The Board of Directors on the Company’s operations

The Board of Directors strictly implements governance in accordance with the regulations on Corporate
Governance applicable to public companies, as well as the Charter and Governance Regulations of Thien
Nam Trading - Import Export Joint Stock Company. The members of the Board of Directors carry out their
responsibilities and authority as outlined in the Charter, Governance Regulations of the Company, and
as delegated by the Chairman of the Board, with honesty; they adhere to the standards, behavior, and
professional ethics expected of Board members; and always act in the best interest of the Company and
its shareholders.

The Board of Directors leads and oversees the activities of the Executive Board, providing the best
conditions in terms of mechanisms, policies, resources, and infrastructure to help the Executive Board
accomplish its assigned tasks. At the same time, the Board of Directors establishes and maintains the
effective operation of the internal audit department and its subcommittees.

The Board of Directors and the Executive Board work closely together in their professional relationship,

based on the following principles:
Always act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.
Strictly comply with legal regulations, the Charter, and the Governance Regulations of the Company.
Implement the principles of centralization, democracy, openness, and transparency.

Collaborate with a high sense of responsibility, honesty, cooperation, and proactively work together to

resolve issues and challenges.

Assessment of
The Board of Directors on the operations of the
Company’s Board of Management

The Board of Directors oversees the General Director and coordinates the activities between the Board
of Directors and the Board of Management as specified in the Company's Charter and Governance
Regulations. By adhering to proper procedures and processes, the coordination between the Board of
Directors and the Board of Management has always been smooth and effective. The Board of Management
faces no obstacles in managing the business, and the supervision by the Board of Directors is maintained
regularly and rigorously, ensuring that the Company's activities comply with the decisions made by the
Shareholders’ Meeting and the Board of Directors.

On a quarterly basis, the Board of Directors requires the General Director to report on the business results,
the progress of implementing the Board's decisions, as well as challenges and advantages encountered
during the business operations. Based on the reports and actual performance, the Board of Directors holds
meetings to review and assess the results of the management, and directs the Board of Management to

carry out new tasks.

In the past year, the General Director has fully met the responsibility of reporting, explaining, and publicly
disclosing business activities in a complete and transparent manner. The General Director has adhered to
therequirementsfor presenting and seeking the Board of Directors’ approval for matters underitsauthority
at both regular and extraordinary meetings. Daily business operations are conducted in accordance with
established procedures and management. Moreover, in 2023, the Company's business activities ensured

compliance with current legal regulations.

Plans and
Orientations of the Board of Directors

Continue to closely follow the directives set forth by the Shareholders’ Meeting resolutions.
Develop plansforimplementing projectsimmediately aftercompleting the necessary legal procedures.
Direct and work closely with the Board of Management to achieve the set targets and plans.

Continue to monitor the situation regarding the pandemic, domestic and global steel prices, and the

real estate market throughout the year to propose suitable and swift business strate-gies.

Disclose information in accordance with legal requirements.
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Activities of the Board of Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE Audit Committee

Transactions, remuneration, and benefits of the Board of Directors,

Board of Management, and Audit Committee



Board of Directors

Meetings of the Board of Directors

Number of meetings 4. Regularly organize meetings to assess the implementation of the business plan in order to have timely
Reasons for not

No. | Board of Directors’ member | attended (in per-son/ | Attendance rate - direction measures.
attending

online/mail...)

5. During the year, the BOD appointed a new General Director and Chief Accountant of the Company,
1 Mr. Nguyen Quang Hoa 09/09 100% controlling the centralized governance model operation system from the Parent Company to member
and affiliated companies in the group.

2 Mr. Ho Van Tuyen 09/09 100% 6. Thien Nam Company system:

Member companies:

3 Mr. Nguyen Minh Thu 09/09 100%
»  Thien Nam Foodstuff Technology Company Limited.
o Dismissal on
4 Ms. Tran Thi Hien 01/09 11% ) . )
June 29, 2024 »  Thien Nam Education Investment Corporation.
Dismissal on ;
5 Ms. Nguyen Tran Thao Huong 01/09 1.1% »  NAHAVIWEL Joint Stock Company.

June 29, 2024

Affiliated and related companies:

Schommittees of the Board of Directors » Sai Gon 168 Trading Business Development Corporation.

- Finance Subcommittee: Fully implemented the Company’s financial supervision in accordance » Vung Tau Housing Development Corporation.

with the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders and as required by the Board of 7. Supervising the implementation of information disclosure of the 2024 reports in accordance with
Directors in 2024. regulations, specifically:

Project Subcommittee: Supervising the operation of the Company's ongoing investment - Annual report for 20223

projects.

Management report for 2023 and the first 6 months of 2024

. . o . Reports for the fourth quarter of 2023 and the first, second, and third quarters of 2024
Supervisory activities of the Board of Directors towards eports Torthe Tourth arartero and the Tirst, second, and e guarters o

the Board of Management 8. Regarding the implementation of information disclosure for the audited financial statements of 2023
and the review of the first 06 months of 2024, the Company is currently late in submitting these reports
due to discrepancies in data between the Company and the auditing unit during the audit process. The
Company has explained this in official letters and announcements to the State Securities Commission of
Vietnam, The Hochiminh Stock Exchange, and The Hanoi Stock Exchange (Upcom), and acknowledges
this oversight to the authorities and shareholders. The Company will continue to work with the auditing
unit, with the earliest expected time in the first quarter of 2025 to disclose the audited financial statements
for 2023 and the semi-annual reviewed financial statements for 2024 as per regulations.

The direction and supervision of the Board of Directors with the Board of Management are carried out
regularly in 2024, through the following activities:

1. Directing and supervising the organization of the 2024 Annual GMS in accordance with regulations;
developing the 2024 business plan and content of the proposals to be submitted to the GMS; changing
the number of Member of the BOD, dismissing Member of the BOD of the Company.

2. In 2024, the Company faced many difficulties in the production and business of key product lines, 9. Decision to select the auditing firm for the company’s 2024 financial statements as AASCS

business was not effgctive, so it did not achieve revenue, only reaching about 85%/KH, pre-tax profit 10. Monitoring the process of information disclosure in accordance with the regulations of the State
lost more than 60 Billion VND. Securities Commission of Vietnam and The Stock Exchange.

3. The BOD regularly supervises the implementation of the Resolutions/Decisions of the General 11. Monitoring the Company's operationsto ensure compliance with the Law on Enterprises, the Company’s
Meeting of Shareholders and the BOD in accordance with the set procedures and progress. Charter, and current legal regulations.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Activities of the Board of Directors

Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors in 2024

Number of

Resolutions/
Decisions

Resolution No.

Content

Approving contracts and transactions between Thien Nam Trading -

01/02/2024 . L
02/2024/QD-HDQT Import Export Joint Stock Company and related parties in 2024
Resolution No. Extending the time to hold the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
24/04/2024
09/2024/NQ-HDQT Shareholders.
Resolution No. 13/05/2024 Finalizing the last registration date to exercise rights, the date of
11/2024/NQ-HDQT holding the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Decision No. 41/ o .
20/05/2024  Dismissal of the Company's Chief Accountant
Qb-CT
Decision No. 42/ ) )
OD-CT 20/05/2024  Appointment of the Company's Chief Accountant
Decision No. 45/ o . . )
24/05/2024 Dismissal of the Company's Financial Director
Qb-CT
Decision No. 46/ Establishment of the Organizing Committee for the 2024 Annual
24/05/2024 .
Qb-CT General Meeting of Share-holders
Decision No. ) )
8 10/07/2024  Appointment of the Company's General Director.
20/2024/QD-HDQT
Decision No. )
9 15/07/2024  Change of legal representative
23/2024/QD-HDQT
Decision No. . -, .
10 16/08/2024  Selection of the Company's auditing firm for 2024
28/2024/QD-HDQT
Decision No. ) ) )
n 17/12/2024  Transfer of contributed share capital to member companies.

40/2024/QD-HDQT

List of Board member with corporate governance
training certificates

None
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Audit Committee

Memberhip and structure of the Audit Committee Audit Committee Meetings

Number of meet-ings
Reasons for not

Start Date as No. | Audit Committee’s Mem-ber | attended (in person/ | Attendance rate

No. Audit Committee’s P Audit Committee Number of shares and online/mail...) attending
MemberAudit Committee MemberAudit ownership ratio
Committee 1 Mr. Ho Van Tuyen 4[4 100%
Change from
2 Ms. Nguyen Tran Thao Huong 2/4 100%

Chairman of the
1 Mr. Ho Van Tuyen ) ) 23/06/2023
Audit Committee

29/06/2024

Oversight activities of the Audit Committee towards the BOD,
the Board of Management, and shareholders

Changes in the Audit Committee o . , , . ,
Monitoring and evaluating the implementation of the business plan compared to the assigned

plan of the Company and its Subsidiary Companies to report and propose recommendations
Audit Committee’s Member Appointment Date Date of dismissal to the Board of Directors; control is carried out monthly, quarterly, every 6 months, 9 months,

annually, and ad hoc when requested by the Company’s Board of Directors;
1 Nguyen Tran Thao Huong 29/06/2024

Inspecting and evaluating compliance with accounting processes, regulations, policies, and

standards;

Reviewing accounting books and appraising financial statements during the year; specifically,
regarding the audited financial statements for 2023 and the review of the first 06 months
of 2024, the Audit Committee has worked with the Company’s leadership team and urged
implementation with the auditing unit on several occasions. However, due to disagreements
on the data in the report, the Company will continue to work with the auditing unit, with the
earliest expected time in the first quarter of 2025 to disclose the audited financial statements

for 2023 and the semi-annual reviewed financial statements for 2024 as per regulations;

Inspecting compliance with the provisions of the Law and the Company’s Charter, and the
implementation of Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and Resolutions of the

Board of Directors.

Coordination of activities between the Audit Committee and the
activities of the BOD, the Board of Management of Management,
and other management personnel

Advising the Board of Directors on the issuance of policies and regulations regarding the con-

tent and timing of reporting on the business performance of the entire Company system.

Centralized control of the entire system to standardize, apply technology, synchronize data, and

use common resources that are optimally allocated for the most efficient entire system.
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Transactions
Remuneration, and benefits of the Board of Directors,
Board of Management, and Audit Committee

Salaries, bonuses, remuneration, and benefits

Salaries, bonuses, remuneration, and benefits of the company’s leadership are determined based on
clear, reasonable criteria that are appropriate for job performance and the company’s operating results.
These payments are intended to ensure work motivation and encourage the leadership to continue to
contribute and develop the company sustainably in the long term. The salary, bonus, and remuneration
levels are established based on references to companies in the industry, ensuring competitiveness and
fairness. Detailed information on the salaries, bonuses, remuneration, and benefits of the leadership

has been presented by the Company in its annual Quarterly Financial Statements.

Share transactions by internal persons

Number of shares at| Number of shares at| Reason

beginning of period end of period for
Transaction Executor Position Increase/
Number Number Decrease
of shares of shares
Independent
1 Mr. Ho Van Tuyen member of the 210,000 0.42% 0 0.00% Sell
BOD
Member of the
2 Mr. Nguyen Minh Thu BOD cum General 102,000 0.21% 2000 0,0001% Sell
Director
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Contracts or transactions with internal persons

Content,

Relationship X Resolution/ Quantity,
Transaction

No. | Name of organization/individual with the St Decision and Total
Company approved Transaction

Value

Company
: Thien Nam Hoa Trading and with Board 5024 About 46
Service Joint Stock Company of Directors’ billion VND
member
5 SG 168 Trading Development Joint Associated 5024 About 1,533
Stock Company company billion VND
3 N Q H Int | 2024 About196
uyen Quang Hoa nternal person
9 ° P billion VND

Evaluation of the implementation of regulations on
corporate governance

In the past financial year, the implementation of regulations on corporate governance has been
emphasized and closely monitored. The company has conducted a thorough review of all governance
processes, policies, and practices to ensure transparency, fairness, and accountability in the company’s

operations.

The regulations on corporate governance have been implemented synchronously and consistently,
from the construction of the organizational structure to the implementation of financial reporting
procedures. The company has strengthened training and raised awareness for member of the

leadership as well as employees about the importance of complying with these regulations.

We are committed to continuing to monitor and improve the regulations on corporate governance, in

order to continuously improve the value and sustainability for the company in the future.
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Consolidated Financial Statement

Quarter IV Year 2024

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 2024
Linit; ¥xD Talnmee ol the end of Balamce at the
Balance al dhe end of Balwnce al the TEEMS Cade Tale the perisl  beginning of the vesr
ITEMS Caode BNale the period  beginning of the year
B NON-CURRENT ARSETS 200 A3 067 300,017 SIN004, 200067
A-CURRENT ASSETS LI 1647 TR0 22 0 L.RO2.04.9]7.58) I Long-term receivablbcs 2a Lod8 068003 6. 79600, 40
L. Long-term trashe neceivables 211 4 -
I Cash and cash equivalents 1o V.l S.H30. 785,669 10.732.761.633 2. Long-term prepayment i supplicrs 212 :
1. Cash il 730,785 669 9.860.761 633 3. Working capital in affiliates 213 -
2. Cash equivalenis iz 1000 00 TR0 BT2000.000 4. Long-term inteér-company receivables 214 .
5. Recelvables for long-tenm boans 215 : %
. Shart-term investnienis 130 Vi 51.575.501.268 . Dther long-term receivables 26 Wb 1638, 068023 6, 196,096,440
1. Trading securities 121 . 7. Allowance for long-term doubifial debis 0 .
2. Provisions for devaluation of trading secirities 122 . . Fised assets 2120 7802172201 40347881242
3. Held-o-maturity inveniments 123 g 52.515.501.268 1. Tangible fixed assets 221 Ve 10.587.410.389 13.433.119.430
fistovical cost 22 ST G437 31430986 512
il Short-term reccivables 1340 H46.530.001 680 BISE0LIILETY Accumikated deprecioniom 223 (7328 71758 (37 07T 867 101
I. Short-term trache receivables 131 Wi S0 M 30 2 168 SEb 0400TE 164 1 Finnncial leased pssets 24 .
2. Shor-term prepavieents (o suppliers 132 V4 T MRS 550 LR AT 68 Historical oot 223 .
3. Short-lerm inler-company receivables 133 - . - Acensndated depreciaiion 124 . .
4. Receivables scconding to the progress of constructic 174 - 3. Inmngible fixed assets 227 V.10 2904761 802 26514761812
3. Receivables for short-term foans (335 - i Fittan! cast a8 et 8 L R T ) 2R ped e aly
6. Other shori-term receivables 136 Vi 39.995.006.867 50.058.116,859 Avcimlared amortization 229 i 1.280.238,105) {1.280.238 (05
1. Allewance e shori-lenn doubifil debis 37 (175.039.811) (145641 T18) 1§ Investment property 130 Vil S6.560.3MF55 B1.128.252.051
B Doficit assets for iestiment 130 Wil 20288106 I23RN06 «  Historical cosis 234 B, 202 325032 (046,202 325 022
Accumalated depreciation 232 20 Y306 (45074.072.971)
Y. Riusinric) i Y 00332101050 LEINANAN IV Long-term asscts in process T4l 1287 M0.001% -
1. Inventories 141 1.038.392. 101,859 L118,717.279.652 I: oo vk b rbeas 241 i i
2. Allowanoe for imventories 149 . (AE2.135.250) 2. Conssroction-ineprogress 242 128,730,000 =
W, Diher current nssels 150 3080, 352650 300091099 V. Long-term imrmmf.u 250 V.2 JXE. IR 497 887 HERET 523,420
- St o s v wmes s e o -
b T Y AT a8 MRS ey 3: Investmenis inznhur enitities ' '-:n Jm:m: |I]{J?IIH'I un'-:'_a-:rj.mulﬂ-:m
3. Taxes and other receivables rom the Stale 133 BIL297.476 573,309,557 o . —r i
& Tiakiia Coiitatomt bonds b ) : 4, Provigion fr fm?ruuum of long-term Onancial oy 254 i -
5 Neld-to-malurity invesiements 255 100, 000 000 T GO0, [0
&, Other cument assels 135 .
VI Cither non-current assels a0 1548.451,341 4.574.470.905
l. Long-term prepaid expenses 261 V. Eb 2,548.450,351 4 HT4ATI.H05
2. Deferred income lux asels 262
3. Long-term compomenis and spare parts 263 - .
4, Onher noA-current assets 2 .
5. Goodwill .
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Consolidated Financial Statement

Quarter IV Year 2024

ITEMS

C-LIABILITIES

L Current Halbilities

I. Shori-term trade payahles

2, Shoct-term advances from customers

3. Taxes and ather obligations to the Seate Budper
4. Pavahles o employees

5. Shoo«lenm scerued expenses

B, Shon-term inter-company payables

7. Payabie acconding vothepeogress of construction oo
B Shom-term uneamed revenue

. Other shon-term payables

(. Slyor-term borrowings and financial lesses

11, Provisions for shor-term payables

V2 Boous snd welfare funds

13, Price stzhilizalion fund

14, Trading Government, bonds

1. Som-eurvend linbilitics

1. Long-term trade payables

2. Lonig<erm prepayment from customers

3, Long-term accnoed expeniss

4. Inter-company payables for eperating copital
5. Long-term inter-cosngany payubles

., Long-lerm usicamed fevenus

7. Onbser long-term payables

. Long-term borrowing and financial leases
9. Converfible bonds

10 Prefiereed shares

1. Deferred income tnx liabilities

12 Provissons for long-term payvables

13, Scicnee and tochsobogy development funds

Cole

Mo
3
112
i3
i
35
Il
A7
iR
e
0
i
3
23
324

30
i
3iz
LER
334
115
EEL]
EET)
EEL]
il
Jan
EE ]
142
i

Note

V.2
V.3
WV
V.4
.l

VAT
V.18
V.19a

V.20

V.18b
W19k

Tabance at the end of
ihe periol

L579.TH7. 439,513

| 5E9 BETHITALE
A VA3, 162.75
03203 360444
4501622606
PR5 548,847

T 506,754,556

62 666.73%
W 952590177
SOT.L66,T2 1415

0B 2.085

ftalamie ot the
Bepinniag of the vear

1. 744241 691830

172075116607
A IIBHTES
370100447 651
5093 085,785
444 356,483
17.322.023. 268

1.107.701.978
188519 527.975
68054 435,542

12066577229

10018352675
2047624554

T

R

ITEMS

CWNER'S EQUITY

Dhwner's ciquily

. Capital

oy shares oavriang viing righis
Preferred shaves

Share premiums

Bonid comversion options

Oiher soarces of capital

Treasury socks

Differences on asset revaluation
Fareipn exchange differemos
levestment deyelopment fund
Business arrangement supporiing fansd

10, Diher funds
11. Retained camings

-

Keraived eprnings aocwmated
ter i grad of the previous periid
fevimined earmings of the cuerend perfod

12 Constrection investment fursd
£3. Benefits of non-comrolling sharcholdees

(18

1.
2

Mber sources aiml Tunds
Sources of expendiure
Furd to form fixed assets

Ma  Thuyé

) mink 5ib endi ki 54 din ndm
40 S000GS. 113508 ER1ATT.ASEHIY
410 V.11 S01.063. 113508 SRLGTT 4R6H12
411 5. TED GO0 48 762 60,000
i fa 495 762 G401 000 S5 700 G4 060
FRI -

412 d034 351637 {034 353637
413 . .
414 . .
415 {8 § 9T8 325 300 (11978 525300}
Ak -
417 " &
A1g 34 7RI 082 T0s A5 763082 703
419 : ¥
429 . .
421 (F2 082 536 378} A7 15022715
{2 fa AR TRE S54. 750 63026 266 439
411h ff TR e LIIRRG0.7IS
432 - 2
a2e [5.515.900.555) (5.050.020.784)
430 i &
431 -
132 .
LR 800 553,021

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUIT 440

s UK

P s

T sk KHAU

Myuven Thi i‘_h; I!'i;n Le Thi Thank Than “Nguyen Van Xghia
Prepares Chiel Acvountant Lieneral Director
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Consolidated Financial Statement

Quarter IV Year 2024
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
QUARTER 1V/2024 " (Indirect method)
Unit: Vi . .
e Cod QUARTER IV [ THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR T0 THE For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024
: g T Cuarrent year Previoes viar Currenl yesr Frevious vear
Lmip WND
i. Sales Bl VLI SIRROSOTTAd  TAMGOLSETMG  L24TOZAZIATEL 4600813930717 "
- ITEMS Code Current year Previous year
X, Sales deduciions 02 VL2 + 292, (e B0 . 427,739, 183
- . Cash Mows fram sperati fivitics
3. Net sales 1w SIAORINTTEd  TELIOOINAE  L4TONIATEL 469008619254 akinais T
- . Pr
L Coitufsaies M VLE  SILSGSSTOSD  TISSG0.MISSE  LIIBTGLANLES]  4SS1E3WISHIN4 4. Prafli before 08 (6655 5R08¢0) 5 ISR 06T IH
’ 2 Adfustmenis
5 iross profig n RAAZASKRI4 M0 000,598 A 61LA02.219 137,557 958,330 = Depreciatson of fixed assets and invesiment propertics 02 7028 721,653 B.0R3 268,922
. _ «  Provisions and allowances 03 (412,135.250 (9573 530.000)
8. Fhanctliacem A VA (1193556300 £037.40.198 WMBBAW. R - Exchange gainiloss) due o revaluation of monetary items in~ 04 9. 340,613 182651313
7. Financial expeoses 2 VIS 10611794, 308 4.014,737.314 SOEOSITOT 106715566187 loreign currencies
Faveliich: Ioan interest expenses 23 0,602 356 475 25171 TRE 216 SOART S2L I 07 385410955 - Gain/{loss) from mvesting activities 05 (20856635 251) (11.034.988.574)
e . - = Interest expenses i S0ART 90,544 107 585410955
Crain oe boss in joint venlures, 2,
Wiy 24 - 3.330.284.081 . 1330244081 - Oithers 07
9. Selling expenes 2% V6 249,830,730 5385, 136,650 11450099728 IK.182.062.908 4. Operaving profit _
b, General and ud : ] r 3 A IBR S0 hefore clranges uf working capital ] (6.625.388.831) 0%, 2009, 869,199
~Genersland sdmisistration exf 26 VL7 16370958068 ISNGTMAD 3550030582 aiial - Increasc/{decrcase) of receivables 09 71559921453 257703826 361
11, Mel operating profit n (215,043, 668.890) (5359, THIS0) {6610, 516, 508) 101280517 - Increasef{deerease) of invenlories " MLEZSATTN (120,355 859,741)
- = Increasei{decrease) of payables 1 (5. 298 489 064) W05.377.271.688
12. thber income 3 Vs RE9.568,321 (219.758.723) 2210806493 SER.029.410 Increase{decrease) of prepaid expenses iz 2.783.000.134 6.223.562.201
13, Other expenyes 32OV 8546064 143316070 3272860585 1.902,244.362 - Increasef{decrease) of irading securitics 13 - -
. - Imterest paid 4 (£3.992,126.543) (VILIB3039.155)
4. fi 298, 0T, 43,054,302 1.344.214.94) : . S : -
Gther profit 0 (B6.296.643) e dh o NI L } - Corporate income fax paid 15 (2,615 855.674) (12.470.697.586)
15 Total sccounting prafit before t 50 (25,120.964,242) (5.752.874302) 61,653,570, 940} 3.767.068.574 - Uhber cosh inflows 16 . -
; Oxher cash outfows 7 (B17.580.772) {2.249.608 558)
I, Corrent ingome tny LI T ] . (L ISLATRATYY - AREOTAALY
- " Net aw: i L2 64 - :
. Diofbrmed marpiats licens e 58 i g ) : casft flows from operating ectivities 2n (L2 ea f. 509 A3 088 320,420
18, Profitafier tax 60 VA2 (SI9964242)  (LSDOAOSEI0)  (6L6S1ST0.040) 3184992181 1l Cash flows from investing activities
Profil after tax of the Parent S 1. Purchases and consiruction of fixed assets and other non- 21 {128.730.000% (289,505,659
19 Company 6l (25,003.441,524) #.076305470) (61171091 168) 4. 168.575.548 R pa—
Profiti{less) after tax of non- ' 2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed asscts and other non-corrent 2 1. 39090909 181.B18 182
¥ cnlriiing shareboald erd 62 1126.522.715) V675 R0%640) {481.579,772) | TRY.5R3.697) Faiis
21. Basic earnings per share ™ VL3 [%0%) (70} {243 k]| 3. Cash outflow for lending, buving debt instruments of other entit 23 25, 375501268 20,905 80 348
22, Diluted earnings per share 7l {508) o ﬁﬁ k1] 4. Cash recovered from lending, selling debt instruments of other ¢ 24 F5,480,000.000 .
: 3. Investments into cther entities 25 . {24.698.025.842)
I 6. Withdrawals of investinents m other entfiies 26 . .
| Y i - b 7. Interest eamied, dividends and profils reccived 27 1B0M.501.285 12.527.053.958
|I /l \‘H-.:._;f;:i;_ﬂ:‘_ J
I'Il Net cash flovws from investing activities 1 115,922, 181,644 BL7ET 444,947
Nguyen Thi Thu Hien Le Thi Thasb Thao TP W6 Sqfuyen Van Nghla
Freparer Chicl Accountsni Leneral Director For the fiscal year ended D ber 31, 2074
This explanatory note is ar insesral port and should be read in coniunerion with the Contolidamd Framnind Smsmonte
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Consolidated Financial Statement

Quarter IV Year 2024

ITEMS

NI Cash Mows from Bnancing sctivities

Code Current year

Previsws vear

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
QUARTER IV/2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Proceeds from issuing stocks and capital contribations from ows 31
Repaymen for capital contribution and re-purchases of stocks ) ﬂﬂ_-'ncrship _Furru
e A P 12 : Thien Nam Trading- Import Export Joint Stock Company (hereinafier refered to a2 “the Company™ or “the Parent
oot s Company™) is a joint stock company.
3. Proceeds from borrowings 33 TL1ED.900 468 1,782,197 406582
4, Repaymen for loan principal 34 (1406886379290 (2457.406.128.645) - Operating feld
5. - Poyisents i Tilrcbl el i 3 (443.071.150) The Group's business sectors include trading, services, and manufacturiag,
6. Dividends and profit paid to the owners i - Principal business activitics
Principal business activities of the Company are (o trade, act a5 an agent for consignment of technology products,
food, foodstulfs, matcrials and equipment, vehicles, alcohel, agricultural products, aquatic products,
New cah flows from fnancing activities 41y B3 53T T2 461} (675651, 793203} electromechanical equipment, construction materials, imerior decoration, fertilizers, pesticides, supplies,
machinery and equipment, cosmetics; act as an agent for goods consignment; purckase and process apricaltural,
Net cash flows during (he vear 50 (1597.188.626) (53.579.321.846) aquatic and mirine products for export (not npcrilliug al the head office); lease travel vehicles; trade iron and
steel, metal serap and provide service of dismaniling old ships and cars {not operating ot the head office); trade
cars; provide customs declaraiion service, provide freight forwarding services; teade real estate,
Beginning cash and cash equivalents il 1732400076 fid.60 4,953,201
Normal operating eycle
The Company's normal operating cycle is within 12 months,
Effect of fuctuations in foreign exchange rales il (4425781 {2.869.722)
Structure of the Group
The Group consists of the Parent Company and 03 subsidiasies, which are under the comtrol of the Parent
Easding cash and cash cquivalents 70 BAILTHS 660 1732761633

Company. All subsidiaries are consolidated in this consolidated financial statement. .

Sa. List of subsidiaries to be consolidated

Ho Chi Minh City, January 24, 2{

¢ e Frineipal Capdtal
#0301 1 720 % |llldntz: contribution Henefit
{ . A O Subsidiary Address  activities rale  rate Voting Rate
| e I Sy Thien Num Foodstull Thien WNam Buflding, 111-112 Wholesaleof
f —*'i/,/" < he e ot Lo s jﬁ‘ H Vechnology Company Nego Gia Tu Sireet, Ward 2,  foodstulT and
~ W \THIEN N Limited Diserict 10, Ho Chi Mink City  technologial
A = products W% u% %
e 7L Thien Nam Education Thien Nam Building, 111-112  Development
Meuyen Thi Tha Hien Le Thi Thanh Thao === "Nguyven Van Nghia Invesiment Corparation Mgo Gin Tu Street, Ward 2,  of services
Preparer Chiefl Avoountant Ciemeral Direciar District 10, Ho Chi Minh City  relsted o
education 64 B8 L
Mahaviwel beint Siock Thien Nam Building, 110112 Masufaciuing
Company MWpe Gia Tu Sireet, Ward 2, and trading ol
Distries 10, 1o Chi Minh City  welding
muberials, 94540 a43% MLS%N

Sb. Associates reflected i the Consolldated Financial Statenents using equity method
According to Enterprise Registration Cenificate No. 0314760724, amended for the fth time on December 24,
2022, issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City, the Company conributed
2002, 0o 04000060 VNI, accounting for 47,53% of the charter capital.
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Consolidated Financial Statement

Quarter IV Year 2024

b.

According 1o Enterprise Registration Certificate Mo, 3302401667 dated July 26, 20149, issued by the Department
of Planning and Investment of Ba Ria - Vang Tau Provinee, the Company invested 120.000.000.000 YND in
Ving Tau Housing Development Joint Stock Company, equivalent 1o 20% of the charter capital,

Statement on the Comparability of Information in the Consolidated Financial Statements
The corresponding figures of the previous vear are comparahle 1o the figures of this year.

Headcount

As of the financial year-end, the Gooup had 57 employees working 8t fts companies {compared to 138 employees
# the beginning of the year.

FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

Fiscal vear
. The fiscal year of the Company is from 01 January to 31 December annually

Accounting currency unit
The currency used in accounting is Viemamese Dong (VMY as mot transactions are conducted in VNI

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

Accounting System

The Group applies Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the Vietnamese Accounting System for Enterprises
issued under Circular No. 20002014/ TT-BTC dated December 22, 2004, guiding the Enterprise Accounting
System, Circolar Ne. 202201 8TT-BTC dated December 22, 2004, guiding the preparation and presentation of
Consolidated Financial Statements, and other eircubars issued by the Ministry of Finance providing guidance on

the implementation of accounting standards in the preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial
Stalements..

Statement of the compliance with the Accounting Standards and System

The Board of Management ensures compliance with the requirements of the accounting standards, the Vietnamese
Accounting System issued under Circular o, 2002014/TT-BTC dasd December 22, 2004; Ciroular No.
SI2MGTT-BTC dated March 21, 2018, amending and supplementing certain provisiens of Circular No.
200204 TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014, of the Ministry of Finance guiding the enterprise accounting
systenn, Circular Mo. 2022004/TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014, of the Ministry of Finance guiding the
methods for preparing and presenting consolidsed financial statements, as well as other circulars than guide the

implementation of accounting standards of the Ministiry of Finance in preparing and presenting conselidated
lnancial statemenis.,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

. Consollidation hasis

Ihe consoliduted financial statemams are prepared in accordance with Circular No. 2022014/ TT-BTC dated
December 22, 2014, issued by the Ministry of Finance, as well as other circulars guiding the implementation of
accounting standards isxued by the Ministry of Finance for the preparation and presentation of consolidated
finanecial statements.

Sebidlany

Subsidiaries arc entities over which the Group has the power to govern finascial and operating policies, typically
accompanied by halding more than hall of the voting rights. Potential voting rights that can be exercised will be
considered when assessing whether the Group has control over the entity. ‘The financial statements of subsidiarics
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date controd begins until the date eontrol ceases.
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Mon-conteolling inferesis

Non-controlling interests (NCIl) are measured st the proportionste share of the non-controlling inserest's
ownership in the net assets of the acquired entity at the acquisition date

Changes in the Group's equity in a sulsidiary that do not result in 2 loss of control are accounted for similarly 10
equity transactions. The difference between the value of the change in the Group's owncrship interest in the
subsidiary’s net assets and the cash paid or received from the equity change in the subsidiary is recognized in
retained earnings within equiry.

Livss af cantrof

When control over a subsidiary is lost, the Group stops recognizing the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, as
well as non-controlling interests (NCI) and other cquity items. Any gain or loss arising from this event is
recognized in the consolidated income statement. After divesting the remaining interest in the subsidiary, the
remaining carrying amount of the investment on the consolidated financial statements is adjusted according to
the corresponding share of changes in equity since the acquisition, ilthe Group il has significant influence over

the investec, If the Group no longer has significant influence, the remaining investment is presented at its fair
value,

Assaciates

An associate is any entity in which the Group has sigificant influence but does not control, typically represenied
by holding between 20% and 50% of the voting rights in that entity. An associate is acoounted for using the equity
method. The consolidated financial staterments include the Group's share of the income and experses of the
associate, acoounted for under the equity method, adjusted nccording s the Group's acoounting pelicies, from the
dite the Group begins to have significant influence until the date such influesce ceases.

When the share of losses of an associate that the Growp must share exceeds the Group's interest in the associate,
as accounted for under the equity method, the carrying amount of the investment {including any lang-term
investments, if applicable) is reduced to zero, and further losses are no longer recognized, except for lnsses to the
extent that the Croup has an ebligation 1o pay or has already paid on behalfl of the associnte.

Eliminared Transoctions i Consolidation

Intercompany balances within the Group and unrealized income and expenses from inercompany transactions
wre eliminated in the consolidation of (inancial sttements. Unrealized pains and losses arising from transactions
with associates accounted for using the equity method are deducted from the investment to the extent of the
Crraup's inlerest in the associate.

HBusiness Combinarion

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method at the scquisition date, which is the dme
when control is imnslerred 1o the Group, Comrol exists when the Group has the ability 10 govern the financial
and operating policies of the entity in osder (o obtain economic benefits from s activities, The assesament of
control takes into account potential voting rights that are currendly exercisable

Fareign exchange rafes

The recognition, evaluation, and bandling of exchange rate differences during the period are camvied out in
sceordance with Circular No. 20002004 TT-BTC dated December 22, 1014, and Circular Mo, $3 2016 TT-BTC
dated March 21, 2018, which amends and supplemems several provisions of Circular Ne. 2002014/ TT-BTC
dated December 22, 2014, of the Ministry of Finance, guiding the enterprise accounting system,
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Y. Cosh awd cach elquivalenis;

Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits in banks. Cash equivalents are shon-tenm investments of which
the due dates cannot exceed 3 months from the dates of the invesments and the convertibility into cash is easy,
and which do not have a lot of risks in the conversion into cash as of the balance sheet date,

Fimancial invessmigns:
Heli-ta-maturity ineestmens :

Investments are classified as held-to-maturity investments that 1he Comnpany intends and iz able 1o hold o
maturity. These held-to-maturity investments include term deposits with banks (including bills of exchange,
promissory notes), bonds, prefesred shares with mandatory redemgtion at a specified future date, loans held 1o
maturity for the purpose of caming periodic interest, and other held-io-maturity investments.

Held-to-maturity investments are initislly recognized at cost including the purchase cost and other transaction
costs. After initial recognition, these investments are eecorded a1 recoverable value. Interest from these held-to-
maturity investments after acquisition date is recognized in the profit or loss on the basis of the iMerest income
10 be received. Interests arising prior to the Company's scquisition of held-to-maturity investments are recorded
as a decrease in the costs as m the acquisition time.

When there are reliable evidences proving that a part or the whole isvestnient cannot be recovered and the [oss
are reliably determined, the loss is recognized as financial expenses during the year while the investment value is

derecognized.

4.1 Borrowings:

Loans are recognized a1 their cost, less any allowance lior dosbiful debis. The allowance for doubiful debts on
loans is established based on the estimated level of losses that may oocus,

4.2 Investments fn Subsidiaries, joint venture, and associates

Subsidiaries

Subsidiary iz an entity that is controlled by the Company. Control is the Company’s power to govern the linancial
and operating policies of an entity so as 1o obtain benefits from its activitics,

ol venifure

A joint vemture is & business emtity established based on an agreement between the Company and other partics, in
which the participants undertake cconomic activitics on the basis of joint control. Joint control is understood as
the requirement for consensus among the participants in making sirategic decisions related 1o the operational and
financial policics of the joint venture.

Asvaciaies

An associate company s a business in which the Company has significant influence bul does not have control
over financial and operational policies. Significant influence is evidenced by the right to participate in decisions
regarding financial and operational policies of the investee company b without eontrolling those policies.

tovestments in subsiciaries, joint ventures, amd assoctates are initially recognized a cost, which includes the
purchase price or the capital contribution along with any directly atinbutahle investiment costs. In the case of
mvestments made theough non-monetary assets, the investment is recognized 21 the fair value of the non-monetary
assets at the time the investment is made,

Dividends and profits from periods before the investment was acquired are recognized a5 o reduction in the value
of the investment itself, Dividends and profits from periods afler the investment is scquired are recognized as
revenue, Dividends reccived in the form of additional shares are only recorded s an increase in the number of
shares, withoul recognizing the value of the shares received or a1 their nominal value,
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A provision for impairment of investmenis in subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates is made when the
subsidiary, joim venture, or associate incurs losses, The provisios is caloulated as the difference between the
achal contribution of the paries o the subsidiary, joint ventur, or associste and the actual oquity value,
multiplied by the Company’s ewnership percentage in relation to the tetal actual contributions of the parties
invalved. [T the subsidiary, joint venture, or associate is preparing consolidated financial statements, the basis for
determining the provision for impairment is the consolidated financial 9aicments.

The intrease or decrease in the provision for impairment of inveitments in subsidiarics, joint ventures, and
associates thal necds to be recognized at the end of the financial year is recorded 5 a f(inancial expense.

4.3 lnvestments in equity instruments of other entities:

Inwestments in the equity instrumens of ansther entity inchede equity instrument investments where the Group
does not have contral, jeint control, or significant influgnce aver theinvestce..

Investments in equity instruments of another entity are initially recognized a1 cos1, which includes the purchase
price or capital contribution phus any directly related investment costs, Dividends and profits from periods before
the investment was made are accounted for as 4 reduction in the value of the investment itself. Dividends and
prafits from periods afler the investment s made are recognized as revenuve. Stock dividends received are only
tracked in tenns of the additional number of shares, without recognizing the value of the received shares,

Provision for impaiment of investmends in equity instruments of another entity is made as follows:

For investments in listed shares or where the fair value of the investment can be reliably determined, the provision
i hased on the market valoe of the shares,

For invesiments where the fair value cannot be determined at the reporting date, the provision is made based on
the losses of the invester, caloulated as the difference between the scual capital comribution of the partics 1o the
other entity and the actual equity. multiplied by the Group's ownership percentage comparcd to the total actual
capital contributions of all parties in the other entity.

The increase or decrease in the provizion for impaiment of investments inequity instrurnents of another entity 1o
be recognized at the end of the (iscal year is recorded as a financial expense.

Receivables:
Receivables are recognized at the carrying amounts bess allowanees for doubifv] debts,

The classification of receivables as trade receivables or other recavables is made according the following
principles:

Trade receivables reflect amouns due from commercial transactions arising from buy-sell agreements between
the Company and independent buyers. This incledes receivables from the sale of goods that have been exported
and entrusted 1o another entity for sale,

Inter-company Receivables reflect amounts due from subsidiaries or units without legal personality and dependent
accounting, which are part of the Company’s imernal trnsactions.

Other receivables reflect receivables not concerning the commercial nature and irrelevant 1o purchose and sale
transaclions .

Provision fior doubilul debis is established for each receivable based on the aging of overdue debts or anticipated
Josses, Specifically:

For overdue receivables:

30 of the value for receivables overdue between 6 months and less than | year,

30% of the value for receivables overdue between 1 year and less than 2 yvears.

T0%a of the value for receivables overdue between 2 vears and less than 3 years.

100% of the value for receivables overdue 3 years ar more.

For doubaful debis but not yet overdue: provision is based on the estimated level of potential loss,
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i,
L

6.2

6.1
i, 4

faveniories ;
Tnventeries accounting:

Inventory is valued a1 cost. I the net realizable value is lower than the cos, the inventory mnst be valued at its
net realizable value. The cost of inventery includes purchase costs, processing costs, and other direcily related
costs incurred 10 bring the inventory 1o its present location and condition.

The cost of invenlory purchased from external suppliers includes the purchase price, nonrefundable taxes,
transponiation, handling, and storage costs incurred during the purchase process, as well as other costs directly
related 1o purchasing the inventory.

The cost of inventory produced internally inchsdes direct material costs, direct labor costs, fised production
overhead, and variable production overhead incurred during the ransformation of raw materials inte fnished
oz

Methed for Determining ile Value af Ending Inventory: The valus of ending inventory is determinad using the
specific identification method.

fnventory Accowniing Method: The company applics the periodic invensory system,

Altawances for inventories:

Allowances for invemiorics are made for each invenory item whose cost exceeds its net realizable value. For
unfinished services, the provision for the decline in value is determined based on the individual service with a

distinet price. Increases or decrenses in the balance of the provision for inventory decline at the end of the financial
year ane recognized in the cost of goods sold.

Bypreciation aceonnting of fixed aveeis;
Fived aveets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation. The cost of tangible fxed assets includes
all expenses incurmed by the Company to acquire the assel and bring it to 2 state of readiness for use.

Subsequent costs ane capitalized 10 increase the assel's carrying amoumt ondy ilthese costs are expected to provide
luture economic benefits through the use of the asset. Cosis that do not meet this condition are recopmized as
expenses in the period incurred,

Depreciation is calculated using the siraight-line method and §s based on depreciation rates determined by the
regulations in Circular No. 452013 TT-BTC dated Apeil 25, 2003, sad Circular No. 1472016 TT-BTC dated
Oictober 13, 2016, amending and supplementing certain provisions of Circular Ne. 452013/ 1T-BTC.

7.2 Finance leased fived asseis

Leases are classified as fingnce leases il the majority of the risks and rewards assoclated with ownership of the

asset are transferred 1o the lessee, Finance leased fixed assets are presensed at cost less acoumulated depreciation,
The cost of finance leased fixed assets is the lower of the fir value of the leased asset ot the inception of the lease

and the present valiee of the minimum lease payments. The discount rar used to calculaie the present valoe of the
minimum lease payments for the lease of the asset s the implicit intercst rate in the lease agrecment or the rate
specified in the contract. IF the implicit interest rate cannot be readily determined. the borrowing rate at the
inception of the lease is used,

Financial leise assets are depreciated using the straight-line method based an their estimated wseful life. In cases
where it is uncertain whether the Group will have ownership of the asset & the end of the lease term, the asser
will be depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful life. The depreciation periods for
various types of linancial lease mssets are as follows:
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7.3 Investment propeeiy:

Investment property refers to land wse rights, buildings, part of a building, or infrastructure owned by the
Company or held under a finance lease, intended to generate rental income or for capital appreciation. Investment
property 15 stated 11 cost less accwnulated depreciation. The cost of investment propenty includes all expenses
incurred by the Company or the fair value of assets exchanged to acquire the investment property up 10 the paini
of purchase or completion of construction.

Subsoquent costs related 1o invesiment property are expensed, unless these costs are expocted to provide
additicnal future economic benefits, in which casc they are capitalized to increase the cosi of the property.

When investment property is sold, the original cost and accumulated depreciation are written off, and any resulting
gaing or losses are recognized in the income or expenses Tor the year,

The transfer from property held for use or inventory 10 investment property occurs only when the owner ceases
using the asset and begins leasing it to another party or when constnsction is completed. Conversely, the transfer
froan investment property 1o property held for use or inventory occurs when the owner starts using the asset or
begins preparing it for sale, The transfer from investment property 1 property beld for use or invemtory does not
change the original cost or carvving value of the asset at the ransfes date.

Prepaid expenses:
Prepaid expenses related only to the current fiscal year are recognized as operating expenses in the fiscal year.

The allocation of long-term prepaid expenses to operating costs for each sccounting period is based on the nature
and degree of each type of expense, in arder to select appeopriate methods and criteria for allocation,

Payables and accraed expenses;

Payables and accrued expenses are recognized for amounts owed in the future related to goods and services
already received. Accrued expenses ane recognized based on reasonable estimates of the amounts owed.

The classification of payables mto accounts payable to vendors, acensed expenses, internal pavables, and other
payables is carvied out sccording 1o the following principlas:

Accounts payable to vendoes reflect amounts owed from commercial ransactions related to the purchase of goods,
services, or assets, where the seller is an independent entity to the Company, including amouants payable for
mports via agemls.

Accrued expenses reflect amounts owed for goods or services received fromm vendors or provided to buyers but
not yet paid, due to the abscnce of invoices or incomplete sccounting decuments, as well os payables for employee
wages, vaculion pay, and sccrued production and business expenses,

Internal payables reflect amounts owed between the parent company and its subsidiaries without legal entity status
for accounting purpose.

Other payables rellect amourns owed that are non-commercial and unrelated to the purchase, sale, or provision of
gonds or services,

il Provisions:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 3 result of a past
event, amd it is probable that scitling the ohligation will result in an eulflow of econamic benefits and the amount
of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

If the time value of money is material, provisions will be determined by discounting the future outflows required
1o settle the obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the specific risks of the ebligation, The increase in the provision duc to the passage of time is
recognized as o financial expenses
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V. Recogwition Principles for Cwier's Equity:
L Capiral:

Orwmer's contributions are recorded according 1o the aciual capital contributed by the sharehalders or owners.
f1.2  Share premivims:

Share premivms are recorded in accordance with the difference between the issuance price and face value upon
the 1IPQ, additional issue or the difference between the re-issuance price and carrying value of treasury stocks and
the cquity companent of convertible bonds upon maturity date. Expenses directly related 10 the additional issue
of stocks and the re-issuance of treasury stocks are recorded as a decrease in share premiums,

1.3 hher owner's equily:

Ohther equity is formed from the results of business operalions, asset revaluation, and the remaining value after
deducting taxes payable (if any) related to donated, gifted, o sponsored assels,

fL4  Trevswry shivees:

When a share capital in the owner's equilty is re-purchased, the amouat paysble including the expenses related 1o
the transaction is recorded us treasury shares and a corresponding decrease in owner's cguity then is recognized,
When this share capital is re-issued, the difference berween the re-issuance price and carrying value of treasury
shares 15 recorded fn share premiums.

12, Sales:
ILF Nales of merchandises and fimished goods:
Sales of merchandises and finished goods are recognized when the following conditions are stisfied:

The majority of risks and henefits associated with the ownership of the produst or goods have been trunsferred o
the buyer;

= The Company no longer retains control over the goods or the management rights of the goods as the owner;
= Revenue is reasonably certain;
The Company bas received or will receive economic benefits from the traasaction;
- The costs related to the transaction can be determined.
12,2 Nales of service provision:

Revenue is recopnized when the results of the transaction can be reliably determined. In cases where the service
involves multiple periods, revenue is recognized for the portion of work complesed as of the balance shest date
of the respective period. The resulis of the service transaction are determined when the following conditions are
satisfied:

- Revenue is repsonably certain;

It is probable that cconomic benefits will flow from the transaction ;

The ponion of work completed as of the balance sheet dute can be detemined:
= The costs incurred for the tansaction and the costs to complete the service transaction can be detenmined,
123 Finarcial income :

Revenue from interest, royalties, dividends, profits, and other financial sctivity income is recognized when both
of the following conditions are satisfied:

= leis probable tht ecomomic benefits will flow from the transaction:

The revenue is reasonably certain
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Dividends and profits are recognized when the Company is entilled to receive dividends or profits from its
iIvEstments.

13. Fimancial expenses:

Financial expenses include costs related 1o financisl investment activities, borrowing and lending, investments in
other entities, losses from shori-tenm securities iransfers, securities ransaction costs, provisions for devaluation
of trading securities, invesiments in other entitics, losses [rom foreign carrency sales, exchange rate losses, cie,
The fallowing items should not b recorded as financial expenses:

- Expenses related 10 product manufacturing, service provision;

= Belling expenses;

- Administrative sxpenses;

- Real estate business expenses;
Investment and consiruction expenses;

- Expenses covered by other funding sources;

- Uther expenses.

Costs related 10 bond issuance are graduaily allocated based on the bond term and reconized ax Ginancial
expenses iFthe bond issuance is for regular production and business purposes.

Interest on convertible bomds is caleulated as a financial expense for the period, determined by multiplying the
initial bond principal at the beginning of the period by the market istersst rate for similar boads without
conversion rights or by the general borrowing rate on the market 21 the time of the convertible bond {ssuance.

If preferred shares are classified as debi. the related dividends are considered as interest expenses and should be
recorded as financial expenscs,

14. Corparate income fox:
4.8 Current corporate income fax;

Current income tax is the 1ax calculated based on taxable income, The difference between taxable income and
accoumting peofit is doe to adjustiments for temporary differences betwesn tax and accounting, non-deductible
expenses, as well as adjustments for non-taxable income and carried-forward losses,

i4.2 Deferred corporate inconte fax;

Deferred income 1ax is the corporte income tax that will be payable or refunded due to temporary differences
betwieen the book value of assets and liabiltities for financial statement purposes and their tax bases. Deferved
income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred income tax sssets are only
recognized when it is probahle that taxable income will be available in the future 10 utilize the deductible
temporary differences,

The book value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted to ensure that
sufficient taxable profits will be available 1o allow for the wiilization of all or pan of the deferred tax asset,
Deeferred tax assets thar have not been previously recognized are reviewed at the end of the financial year and
recognized when it is certain that sufficient taxable profits will be availsble to use these previously unrecognized
deferred 1ax assels.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the tax rates eipecied 1o be applied in the year in which
the asset will be recovered or the liability settled, based on the tax rates hat are in effect at the end of the firancial
vear. Deferred income tax is recognized in the income statement and isonly recognized directly in equity when
the tax is related to items dircctly recorded in equity,

Deferred tax assets and defemed tax Labilities are offser when:
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The company has a legal right 10 offset current income tax assets against current income tax labilities:
The deferred tax assets and defermed tax liabilities relate to income axes kevied by the same tax authority:
They relate 1o the same taxable entity;

The company expects to settle the current tax payable and the cumend tax asset on a net basis, of 1o recover the

assel simuitancously with the payment of the liability in future periods when significant portions of defermed tax
liabilities or assets are settbed or recovered.

15, Related parties

Parties are considered related il one party his the ability to control or exercise significant influcnce over the other

W making decisions related to financial and operational policies. Parties are also considered related if they are
subject to joint control or significant joint inNucnce.

When considering the relationship between related purties, the subsance of the relationship is emphasized more
than the legal form.

16. Segment reporling

A business scgment is 3 component that can be elearly identificd, participates in the production or provision of
goods or services, and has risks and economic benefits distinct from these of other busingss sepments.

A geographical segment is & component that can be clearly identified, participates in the production or provision
of goods or services within a speeilfic economic enviromment, and has risks and economic benefits distinet from
thase of ather segments in different economic environments.

Scgment information is prepared and presented in sccordance with the sccounting policies applied in the
preparation and presentation of the Company’'s financial statements.
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Vo ABIITION AL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIBATED BALANCE SHEET

1. Cash sod cash equivnlents

Balamste a1 the ead of  begimning of the

ihe perind year

Cash on kand 12T EET 450,961,885

lerm deposits # banks T.500.75:4 682 £ 409797748
Cash agurvalenis PO T K72, D), (D
T welich, bavk depoits af which the principal marurity is within 3 manths o
- Fleriahank 300, ) ) &7 2000 NG
Tatal BAR0LTRS.669 10,732, 761.633
1. Financinl [nvestmonls

Joi Hleld-ta-avasueity invesimemis

Palance at the end af the period Halance al the beginning of the year
Orligimal value Carrving valie Drvigimal value Carrying value

Shori-term - . FLETE 00 08 §2 575500208

Verm deposits . 52.575,500.268 52575501268
Lonrg-tervt T 7400 A0, B £ T AT S0, ThLARE, GO0 a60 T AR 0, 0G0, S
Term deposits 1240 GO DD 12 A0, DD £1.050, 000,000 & OO0 MM
Bons B D0 000 5 0y DL KW 25 630,000,000 25,5340, 000000
Tatal L LU TR § 7. TN, T 129,255, 500.268 129.255.50.268
Ih, fmwestmants in other entifles

Batance al the end of the periad Balsnee at the beginning of the year
Original ampunts Pravisians Criginal smounts  Pravidioss

Frrwesimcis i folwf ventieres, gssociares IR0 393 397,587 = F9.393.397 587
Sai Gon 168 Trading Business Developmen 194,393 397 587 164, 393,357 587

favestaeniy in other ronitles P20, 496, T 0% 0 T 2090, 05 Y =
Mung Tau Housing Development Corporaiic B2 00 DD, OO0 1 0000 R () -
Mien Bac Nahavingd Joint Stock Company AT, 100, D0 A, 1 OO0

Tatal STALERO497 587 . JU4RND 407 567

{1} Inwestment i an associate - Sai Gon 168 Trading Dusiness Development Corposation i recognized in nocordance 1o equity method

{ii} According to the Business Registration Centificate No. 3502401667 dated 26 July 2009, granted by Department of Planaing and
fnvestnsem of Ba Ris — YVung Too Provinee, the Group invests am amsount of WL 120,000, 000,000 in Viang Tan Hoasing Develapmien

(iii} The Company does not have significant influence on operations of Mien Bac Wahaviwel Teint Seock Company, 5o this invesiment i

presented as investments in ather entitics.

Falr value

Thee proug has ot identified the fair value of the investments becase there was 6o instnstion givea on identification method
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3, Sheri-term frade receivabiles

Recelvables from related parties

Sak Cion 1% Trading Busincss Developmes Corpeaation

Thien Nam Hoa Service Trading Joint Stock Company

reveivables

Bvguyven Mink Steel Group Jaint Stock Company

MNguven Minh Steel Mamndfacturing - Trading Corporation

Tinh Phat Vina Trading Service Company Limised

Receivables from otiver castviners
Chher custimers
Total

4. Short-lerm prepayments (o supplicis

Prepayments o sappliers whose bulance accounts for mare than 0% af tie prepivinents
Viss Steel Manufacnonng Trading And fmpont Expont Co., Lad

iMiver suprliers
Total

5, (iber receivables
S, ihker shoer-term recelvables

Balsnce al the end of heginndig of the

the perivd - vEEr

17388 000887 1526302338
120442287 11001 39 835

17,258 558,000 2416232500
IR O68.254 2RV TERGRILGED
167004474333 132 0554701835
{2.479.497 921 M. TeATL92]

5 17723247

0% 222 788237 ILASIERLETE

09, 222 713,547 263653 BO2 576

06, 794 81368 564349078554

lnlamee a1 the end of Malance nt the

Ihe peiiod Ieginaing of the

HER, TR A3 20073683

G35, TR0 26372085

Jon 195720 FLE T

TH4,BO5.550 19,577,068

-

7. Inventaries

Gipads in transit
Materials and supplics
Vonds
Work-in-priscess
Fimizhed goods
Memhandises
I wikicly
= Cost af goods

- {Fifts
- Real #etote
Tuatal

Ralance at the end of the period Palance ai the begimning of the year
thriginal costs Allawaner {iriginal cosls Allawiames

i ' 573475508 #
ATaA1.423 WEE A5G S0 .
G RTHEIR 64578 418 s
442,854 558 ' 2584555 P
2IRA2.163 3 5h2R28.418 .
1086 %84 2 |4 808 . 1003, 114,385 58] (21352500

Fluctustioas i alkowances fie imventories are x5 folloas

Haksnce at the beginning of the vear
Additional allowance

Revorsal of tllowance

Balance at the end of the period

8. Prepaid exjpemses

FO4E T2 704 856 .05 554 708 678 (412 135 25
§ 78, 00 My ¥ 76,600, (e ™
SLI 420402 ol 438 ] Th ER
IOHK.192, 1) RS L.118.717.279.652 (1L 138,250)
L e m——
Cureent year Previous year
412.135,250 LAIGRIENAT
JBR.T27.923
(412,135 250) {4,593.407. 710
. 412435250

Ralance at the end of the peeiod Balange at ibe beginning of the year fa. Shorf-rerm prepald experies
Value Alowance Valer Allswance Balance of the cml of  Batance at the
Receivables form refated parties 84640000, 000 3602892000 - < o ;“ period _EW'“"E;;T?; —
: l i - L}
Mr. Nguven Quang Hoa 1740 000 600 32502, 892 000 - e 42090 100 :
: _ _ Constructing and repairing cxpenses 253268500
Sai Gon 168 Trading Business Development . (W00 - : :
5 e Expenses on LIPAS LC 2. 280,05 :
Sanck Company . 720000000 y 3.900,000.000 Other short-term prepaid ex 119 159.622.731
I.F35.036.567 TRO55.224.659 - il e :
Reoeivaldes front otler organdsations wrd FE LR 006. 56 e e e
Heceivables from emplayess TES513.574 133.142.884 - .
[nferest 1o be roceived . 1936 584,057 Bb Lovrg-term prepald expenies
Shon-texm depodits, collareral (EAXLTRETY] 160500000 Balince st the ead of brginning of the
Crver=dishursement flend B97E.601 A8 Gkbh | 3IRA5T the period year
oMo NewYark Tradmg Invesiment Cogpon H03TE OO = - Tools % T a0 720
Oither shost-ierm receivabics 1.547.921 575 1.778. 758479 . Repairing cxpenses SR 667,173 75.763. 385
Total ISR G567 ¥ 00551 16850 Fec on transfir of premiscs leass right 291 6l RS 541666652
< ; Credit insurance expenses 154,994, 50 3, 100,000,004
A O gt ekt Onbier bang-term prepaid expenses 118117456 29,143,118
Halande at the end of the period Balance a1 the beginning of the vear Total S SIRA5135] LRAT0.008
Value Allowapce Vil Allowanece E— - =g
Long-term deposits, collaeral LARE 6811 AAITARTTIE %, Tangible Gxed asvels
: Baildinps and  Machinery amil
Oiher . hbes 179721382 1R 608722
Tatal i 3.638.068,023 6.796.096.440 stractures_ equipesent Vihicles Ofice squipment Total
= - Historical cost
& Deficit auvets for dreatment I!ﬁ!arm. at the beginni 14,903 399,727 27297650 468 9.125.818.147 103615, 1% 4], 430 580,532
the period hegimning of the year sscts during the : {1.514 562, 385) . (3.504.863.385)
Inveniorics HLIBE. 106 20288, 106 Balance at the enil of 14.900,899.727 17297650, 468 S61055.762 103618, 190 47916124147
Total 201288, 106 0L 2HE, L0
— & 2

99| Annual Report 2024 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | 100



Consolidated Financial Statement

Quarter IV Year 2024

in which: Assets fully
depreciazed bl 50l in

List of investment properties ns a8 ihe balance sheer daie a5 follows:

{122 T 3507747 1R 317 792,854 3559 T2 96 4. ITE. 000 29.719.300.398
Historical cocts depreciation Met book; values
Depreciation House, No. 451453 Nguven Tri Phuong Street 1410352015 141.035.115 .
Balance at the beginnit  11.011.075 593 19.846.979.439 74086 240 128 $671 602 3THTR6TI0 House, No. 01-03 Ngo Gia Tu Street 225344333 HE0.520 7.136.003
Deprecintion during . $07.545.364 184,055 466 615,203 81 SIS 2600590002 SRV Dl e e u S e HEathon i
RS, Heise, Mo 192-158 Neo Gia To %irea §21520568 S06.547 539 6578020
period . {2 A95.059,315) . (XEU5.059.34%) House, %o 07409 Ly Thai To Sirea 50117754 59,117,794 ‘
Balamce at the cnd of 11.818.621.157 11031004, 905 A MO0 E5G 7057, 37.A14.713. 748 Office. Mo, 353 Npo Gis Tu Sereat 291231724 243 7HE. 505 V1509310
Oiitice, Mo 192-198 Nego Gia Tu Street 1.627.211182 1A27 203082
Nt Lok valnes Oifige, No. 451433 Ngaven Tri Phuong Sirea 178431190 178,431,190 ‘
Halange at the beginak BEYZE2A034 TAS0671.029 E-Nﬂ--‘jﬂ‘? 20046545 13433119430 Office Building, No.811-121 Mpo Gia Tu Street 22704709320 12.995.215.976 9806193 344
Balance al the end of SONEITRETO . 3600615.503 1210055, 6,861, 160 FOLERT, A LSS Store and Office, No. 2778 Cach Mang Thang & Street TRITL.e4A79 X2 366 THT 440 6,90 577030
Vatal 1045, 202,328,022 9. 341934067 6,060, 190,553
Neame dangible fred qusers, afwiich the med ook vilves are 3012 726437 PN, have beent mortpaged fo secare the foams from banks
feee Note No. V. i%ai [2. Short-term trade payables
g e 3 N ) the period Imning of the
0. Intangibde fived assets payihies AR5 478 0. 180 %ﬁ Sie v
Land use right Ground leveling  Computer software Total Sobto NewYork Trading Investment Comortion ILTSENLI06 299000 852082
Initial cost Interrational Logestics Goods Joint Stock Company 191, 558.5T8.017 Tt 284162067
Bialamce at the beginning of the year 25235, 147 500 262032007 OS50 IR 199999917 et Comumy Ly AN RIS
Batance at the end of the period 25,255.147.500 1620320917 IDSILS00 28194999917 Marubou - flacku Siee! Victnan Co., Lid « Ho Chi Mink Branch ,
tlher sapplives IPLARLETHETE SO5 TSP 42T, S04
Twial GES 163 162,754 T3 343,785
Iro whtich- asses fully amortized e stidf o we 319531500 A19.531.500 i .
13 Skort-term advances lrom customers
Amsoriisation the perind breginmimg of the
Balance ar the beginning of the year - S0, 71 608 319830500 1_280.238, 103 a. Advances from related parties (ree Note No,34) A9667 001523 -
E::l:x::ul:::ud ufl the period WD, TG, 605 JIDER] 500 I.J80.2 38, 105 Sai Gon 168 Tradiag Business Development Corporation FGAET. 108 423 .
] o b, Advawces frome she thivd paviy 45541258924 ILorOL4 7600
Baksnce o the beginning ﬂhhﬂ_‘ yeur . i : —— United Nations International Investsent Jaimt Stock Company IEETO 47154 J6.8T0. 147,194
Balance ait the end of the peried 23.355.147.300 '-‘5‘3'?'“_”-!"‘ 26.914.761, ' Other customers RATHMRTIT 140 300,497
25.255,147.500 1.659.614.311 - 1651476150 Total DLI0R 360444 3T.000.447.601
I4. Tax and other obligations 1o the State Rudgei
- Boiree intangible fived assets, of which the net book vahses are 25255, 147,500 VND have hesa mortgsped 10 secure 1be loans from Balance ot the Payables during the Balance af the end
B - Ho Chi Minh City Branch {se0e Note No, V. V). beginning nf the vear periesl Amaunt paid af the period
YAT on locul mbes 2821648907 4544, 345,555 (3.071.455.304) 1,296,735, | 68
11, lavesiment property VAT on imports - L 0k (91,276,532} .
Investment praperty of the Groap only includes infrastroctre snd land use right. Details o as follows: Expaoet-impon duties (T0L.B81Y . . .
Historical costs deprecistion Nel sk values Conporaie income tax 1.766,775.274 - (2815 8556740 (B9 R0 410
bepinning of the vear 106 302,325,022 45074072971 &1 128282 051 l*_rrm-:l naome lax A7 808,756 :m.m:’.it_ﬁ (32522 023) S0 278
the potiod 2167 K51 096 Lisense ta - 21.000.000 (21,000,004 :
gl A P S Chiber vaves 111,559,152 17 0000 i1 7000, D0 i2LB53.024)
ile period 106203325020 40190 067 5,960, 100,935 Fees and oikier pavables - | 35 50, G0 (243.412.156) 20,600,000
; E ) Tagal S 119.780. 225 021054059 6.0 12,52 2.080) 4028, 325,020
- Ivestment property that fislly deprecisted bus stiil for lease or holding: 2,005, 797,381 VD, S - "
= All invesiment properties. of which the net values are 59004321, 503 YNNI have been modgaped 1 secure the loans form hanks {see Taxes and other receivables 1o the State B BYI 309547 E75.267 676
Mote Mo, V. (9L Faxes and ather pavables to the Stk Bode 55993080, 785 R Tl
S 10, THD. 228 AR 325020
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Vature addded fax (VAT)

The Group companics have paid YAT in accordance with ibe deduction method, The tax rtes applied are as follows
- Export goods

- Local sales

. G for domestic consumption and other scrvices

Expart-Imipars dutles

The Gireap companies have doclared and paid these dislics in line with the Customs” aotings.
Forelse pax

The Group companics have declared and pald these duties in line with the Customs” notices.

Corparaly livcame by
T Ciroug companics have bo pay corparale income ta, on taxable income o the mie of 1%

3FF

Determination of corporate inconss tax liability of the Group is hased on cusrently applicable tegulztions on te. Nometheless, these tax
regulations may change from time 1o time and ta repulations applicable 1o variety of rarsactions ain be isterpreted dilferently. Hence. the

lax amounds presented in the Comsolidated Financial Statements can be changed upon the inspection of tnx autborities.

15 Fayables 1o emiplovees
Halance mE 1he ead o Halance e ise
ke perind beginning of the
Snlary 16 he pand (95 548847 244,556 43
Total (L TETR TR RS
16, Shori-term acerued expenses
Balance at ibe end of beginning of ihe
ibe period vear
Laoan mierest-¢xpenses 0481127952 021 0TE 852
Persomal imcome tax paid on acher's behalf 43, 200 HK 517000000
Avoonasls far land renial expenss 563,578,044 -
Accruals for UPAS LT expensss IR0DAEI0.004 14,503 AR2020
Diber short-term sconieil expenses 207,729 384 280462 GG
Total Tk, 754356 173220210 368
I'7, Shart-term wnearncd rovenue
Balanee at the end of Balanes &l ihe
the perioad beglaning of the
Advance kindengarien fnion payment ET0A61.10% G5R. TRO. 163
Advance invedment properics leases SI103.634 [45.5921.815
Tatal Wo1.606.T 1 1107, 701978
18. Dhber payahbes
18a. Drker shovi-ferm payobles
Ralance st ibe end of Ralance ot the
the perind  beginning of the
Payubles to refeted parties B4 IRG THARTE -
Mr, Nguyen Quang Hoa 16,81 2744872
Sai Gom 168 Trading Business Development Corporaiion P AT 000 .
meﬁhﬂﬁwwgnm':ﬁm ananedf inveliviaeseds 150 TER A48 308 LT RN b
Saipan Jomnt Stock Commercial Bank - Paymeat gumarive 147255 598 818 %5503 5U% 418
Shoat=lgnm deposdis, collmernl MR A 10 (00 133 4 1A
Loam inleness pasable . 13,002 865
Cither slaoitslerm payables 3203636467 3469 506072
Totul - W05 590,177 I88.519.527.775
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§8b ker loagaerm papables
Tealance at the end of Balanse ai the
ihe period begimning of the
Receipt of long-term deposits, collateral 9,580,002 085 L0018 %52, 675
Tulal 0830012 088 ILDIE.I52675
1. Barrowingy snd Meancial bease
§a Short-term barrowlngs and Srancial lease
Pretaits of shoei-term borrowings and fimsncial lease arise as follows:
Arising durimg the peried
Increasing durimg the Amount paid Transfer from long-
at the beginning of period durimg the perisd term bareawings  1ce ab the end ol the p
Shari-lerm lnans
fram banks S51.581 635275 T1ATE MRS (126500698 128} . HEEIET2LANS
« BRIV . O
Brarnch A6, B3 882270 33 ST AR 1TE) - AT A2
FPBark « NCME
Hramch FE7BE8 2N 04 (31424 S21F = R AR e B
« TP Mgk « Bear Theoml
frarch G, (YA e VN R, R0
< Sammipat « B L
Hreack T6 858,592 195 - - . TA 556 K42 T0A
» L ek {6637 30X £14 s (e EIT LA .
- BIDY - Mg Mo
Franch ELRRLLE el FILA25 TR 168 (6.1 28,560,735 250456074 365
Oither shari-term hor 1608, 2980T A, 100,000, (e (1583 TR0 8T - § 00 SR G0, NN
Curreant Parlbon of
Long-term delst
(M HBank) [RESTRITET - (2950124580 1R G AR5
Tudal S08.254, 425 847 77565, T84, 168 ELE XN TREE, 1913634, 554 497.566,721.41%
Sumnmary of shert-seem borrowings and financiod leave arise o3 foltows:
Arislag during the porinad
\nercasing during the  Amownt paid dering  Traasfer from losg-
1% the beginning of1 period the period term barrowingt ace a0 the end of the
Bhart-term leans
from banks S51.550.655.275 TLAIA TR H05 0 2, RN 2y - 196606 T2 415
Other sbart-term b 16393250 857 i, 1B DR, G (1535, THLSET) 10, F5a 000,
Current Parlion of
Losg-term debst
(MBRank) 1500, 10 = {2,920, 1 24,550 19194624558 -
Tutal 03954428 842 11565, TR 468 BA0LETA L A 191062 554 57566, 720415
{90, Lomg-rerm boreowimgs sod Tnowvcial lease
Balkiance ot the Arising daring the perioad
Leginning of the Increasing during the Amouni paid Transfer feam sherl- Ralance af the cnd
vear periad during the peeiod term borrowings  of the period
- MBRBank - SG0D 2 &0.175.000 - (4 3T 5 00N
- BV - Hae Man
Brawciy 2058 249 544 - (2058249 534) =
Tatal 1147624554 - - 2. 147614, 554) =
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0. Bonws and wellaee Tumils

Balamce ai the Giain dise to

teginming of the  apprpristion from Disburwement durimg  Balamce at the cnd

year prafi Criber Increases thie vear of the period
Boenus fland 430,995 987 A30.995 GET
Welliare fond (V2. 187.755) S0a0,229.102 1587000 (9 188.722) 1T A439625
Bonus fiend fog the Exe (el 946, To%) 250,114,551 {145 TR0.812) (9. 550,057 030)
Taotal 19046, 1 38, 547) TE0. 343651 15571000 (BELJILELE) (8.078.601.418)

21 DT-consalidated balance sheet iems

* Foreign currencies

= LS
Todnl

1t Dwmer's ﬂ]u{lg.
22a. Detwils of owmer's squily

-{.-i{lﬂlll contribution from ather mganizations and individuals
Tatal

12b. Capital framsactions, dividend and profil distrilution

« Capival

+ Balan<e al the :I:llginrlllg of the VEAF
+ Ingreases during the period

+ Decrenses during the perind

+ Halance at the end of the period

= Mividend, profit dioribu bed

2te. Shares
= Mumber of shares regisiered io be issoed
« Bumber of shares sabil to the public
+ Coemmeon shares
+ Prefemed shass
= Mumbher of shares repurchased
+ Ciomnmmon shases
+ Prefemed shases
- Mumber of oulsianding shares
+ Commsn shases
¢ Prefemed shares
* Face value of oatstanding shares: 10000 VI per share

22d, Diiwidends

= Dividends disclosed sfier the end of fseal year

+ Dividends an eommeon stack

¢ Mividends on peelerred sioek

= heeumulated unrealized dividemds on preferred siock

214, Funds
= Investimect and Development Fund

16| Annual Report 2024

Hatance at the enil of beginning of the
the p:rhd Vear

1.352.44 1,425.04

135244 1.415.04

Balamee an the end of beginnkng of the

Pereenlage the pericd VEar
IMes =25 762 HA0H 495, 762, fd1), ()
1% S5, TR 26400000 495762 640, 000
Currend period Previcus periosid
S5 TRZA40,000 05 T6E, B, DU
H9E. 762,640,000 05,762, 640,000

Bralamee at the emd of  beginning of the

the perivd VEAT

49,576,264 40,576 204
47,576, 164 FE5T6 64
49,576, 154 HLATA 260
M.554 4058
14,959 34054
49231510 4023300
49,331,310 A3 251300
JILTAA 08D 105 JILT68, 082, 108
1763082 105 3763082, 105

12e. Slabavacr of Bociated w amons egaity

) Fangstenrai ured Helairerd il sk (il bmg

Capeeal Shart prominmi | Togsnary thares  devalspensni fond Rrme taterest Tadal
Prgprnng balma ol th piesmmn porad T e 0 EOMIAEIT  §) TR gy B Tod Gk 1 el B ) 4 2% HDeS WA ESTE  ITRATR M
Uapotad isapbparie Vibporrad | v el dating #x
PTG T = ' A TR (T 1
Proafie { Lomis &a cheg Pofrs s gorioed EXRAN1TRT [TEE D 49T LIPS
Appiapiatan for bomas @l welies fersts in O
Py ksl - LTI TI Gd) qi e
Approprmmady e fusd ol Euecaivg (000 1@ e
[ pTied [ERCTELN 5o A R
Appiograstios for ol werka in the geoviees pariod |1 (i 11 00 (N
A dpndoerd oof Ot e de b vl for B
et WS M) F dharing Dhis pavid AL TR} [FE AT
bepa dex B copatal meeele B ubadiany w
aiTthabod comppay bn tha Lied preriexd 18 T2% LI 1 in 1472912
Aty i L chapon i redepoiulieg mic (Rl e T804 TR
Afjaumwnt of Uy prmesan did b e m iy mon-
armis [l Sl Fa e hpe g B pecrd. » - ... - I 7 | slE el 0.2%1 &R
Balssor wi (b smd af (he proviees peviod AL TR D LOMLEATT 1) TR AL So) 0, TehoE2. e GRS AT (RASLNTA) MLATTAN
Fllaag iy Dapasisng ool lisr assivesd ymsr ard, Tid ad 0 SOMAFIENT [ LFTRETS 100y LY LR Rl ATINMIEEY i (ROSLIML TR SELETRAN
[t ] btrrmse] diox resi | Feadi iy 151 dharing 4
I‘I'I."l'l.l'l]l.fql'!!‘ M i
Prosf i) in e previous hofd 1V TE S 4ELEMTT (nbadiate
Appeoprimios € hotcs sl willpn fash i Oe
s P - |40 23 BT LI )
Apprvgriseen i Rl of Exocive (8 Fcer in fa
[ —— - R RN B LEH [FLLRNE
Ur oy vmere fanieg, B P - adisrugida fo
ACCiIMia Ll S parwiegn Uil TS [ETYa R
fud il » - = IR AE AN TR = (1R2ED48
Balamid &1 ke vl ol e cumrr s prried ANE, THD e 0 AR IERRNT N1 ST E ) SETRA DRIV IRSADANA AT M SRRRERAREY  Snpmedill
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VI ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

L. Sales

Sales of merchandises
Sales of finished posds

Sules of other services
Tastal

L, Sales deductbons

Sales returns
Taial

1 Cost of sales

Cost of merchandises sold

Expenses for investment property trading
Caost of other services provided
Allowanee for inveniories

Reversal of allowanee for invenories
Tadal

4. Fimaneial income

Term deposit interest
Dremand] deposit mierest
Intercit on bonds

Imterest on deferred payment

Exchange gain arising

Exchange gain due 1o the revaluation of menetary items in foreipn
currencies

Total

. Financial expenses

Loan inferest expenses

Exchange loss arising

Exchange loss duc {o the revaluation of monctary items in foreign
cUTTENCHes

Provisions for devaleation of investmenis
fmerest on deferred payment
Todal

71 Annual Report 2024

Qusrter V2024 Quarter IV/2023
513007373406 Tig 483 487.700
12.646,878.552 3655155312
2043775, 70 FAE2 44 334
FIR500.007.T64 TR3.600, 587546
Durarter [VR024 Charier FVI0ZY
297 0946, R

. 07006, 504

Duarter 1V 2024 Duarter 1V/2021
S18Z01.736.03 T11.840,158 307
3295571024 4072005 60
LEFOAGL) 50 L184.395.17%

. 3E.7XION

(40 2.135.250) (126047 361
512065571850 TI8. 960 149,853
Cuarier 1V2024 Duaarter 1V2023
11200457 6700 I66E.6T7.008
1339355 10,2510

. 286388794

- 2.059.751 422

£238.78% (66,541 67Ty

TNy 21113710
(1.193,556.509) 6037 400,108

— =

Quarter 1V/1024 Duarter 1V2023
10,602, 380.475 25171789236
(151, 749.243) 252652 980
[60.163.083 BT650.313

{0} (2038.015,132)

- 246258917

LL014.737.314

1611.794.305

b, Belling expenses

Quarter V72024 Quarter IV/2023
Stall costs 512.670,500 2481563014
Mlaterials, packages 200 e 45063380
Deprecintionamortization of fixed assets 192855349 20936566
Extermal services rendered L178.B15.533 1.252.214,598
= Llrilivy expevses 237 10007 T4 972 280
- Warehmse renial and maimtenance expenses 48 81T e FT4.902. 702
- Bank charges ) 2821482
- Cost of recerving selfirading goods . 130 745 392
« Cthar exdermad fervices remdored 72 B84 875 2770047
Chber expenses 615,289 304 1,334 908782
Tutal L4830, 730 5.385,334,650
7. General and administration expenses

Quarter 1V/2024 Quearter 1Y/2023
ST cosis LBOSAR) BED 2. 166.378.840
Materials, packages 30652454 113299334
Dreprecistion/amonization of fixed assets 2919598098 215.759.636
Extemal serviess remdered 13978 241 047 17.010.012.257
Other expenses 256,602,780 200 360.300
Total T 370,938,069 19.706.710.427

—— g

B Onher income

Duarier 1Vi2024 Cuarter V2013
Proceeds from Higuidation, disposal of fxed asse1s {R1.R18.182 (324.423.115)
Fines from violation of the contract 6R7 254,506 41 920000
Diher incame 415633 62,744,592
Total BH9.554 321 (219,758.723)
9, Ogher expenses

Dunrier V2024 Cuarter 1V72023
Losses from liquidation, disposal of fixed assels and investment proper 20470335 (343933717
Fimes for administrative vielation 14296316 B0, 000
Tax arrears 3 152 5502205
Fines for violation of the contract 194.372.276 14077800
[her expenses 2A51.8548 S9.369,776
Taal 155 886964 {41.316.070
I8 Operating cosis

Quarier [V/2024 Quarier I'\-'.'ll]_.li
Mipterinls and supplies 6 352484 L1184 533
Labor costs 2704282337 5182874140
Deprecintion’ amartizstion of Nved assets 1 .597.128.773 1.3842.706.7%
External services rendered 17.672 802007 10911729658
Uther expenses 2005 876,567 5A07. 7M1V
Taral 1.056.741,578 i AGI 1A E2E
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Ib. During Quarter [Vi2024, the Company engage in transactions with relsted parties as follow

Related parties Note Transaction valui

Mr. Nguven Quang Hoa Advance for project cost 7T 150000

{Chairman) Refund of advance 099,591 24

Borowing 27 A08. 999946

Sai Gon 168 Trading Business

Development Corporation Seling merchandises 360.000, 704,208
Sales proceeds 421,407 807731
Lixim repaymeni 2000000004

Thien Mam Hea Service Traling Joini

Siack Company Imviestment propertics for bease 33,708,000
Lending money 250,000,000

1e. As of December 31, 2024, receivabibe snd payable batances to related parties as foslows

Balaece st the emd of  Palance at the

Thien Nam Hoa Service Trading Joint $iock Company
[a Ria - Vung Tau Howse Development Joint Stock Company

Board of Management, Institute of Intemnal Auditens, Board of
Supervisors, Roard of [ireciors, Chiel Accountant

™| Annual Report 2024

Related party

Exceutie Oificers

Quarter IV Year 2024
11, Corporate incomae {ax Ouarter 1Vi20%4 Cruarter 12023
- Corporate income 18 on taxable income - (3252178470
- Delerred corpormie income ax -
- Prigr-period adjustments 1 corporale income Tax = g
Toral {3.2152.37R.472)
11, Carporate income fax pavalle aml earning afler tax
Duasrier IV2024 COmarier V2023

Total ascouting profit before {251 29.961.242) {5.752.874.307)
- LUpward adjustments 1953 573,390 T35, 1GhAG 1
- Dovwarwand adjustments -

Taxable income (21 T03LEATY {5,017, 7076400
Corpiorals incoms mx i 20
Corporate income tax pavable - {A252. 37847
Deferred corparate ingonte lsx . i
Earning after tax (2EI29964.241) {1.500.495. 530K
13, Earving per share

I3a. Basic earning per share

Cunrter V20724 Dwarter IVA02Y

Accowning profit after 1ax {25,003 441.524) (1,176, 305,470%
-Appropriation for bonus and welfare funds - 751.734.983
Profit used to caleulsic basic earning per share (25003 441.524) (3 A24.5T0L.4%5)
The weighted average number of common shares outitanding during

e year 49230310 49.231.310
Hasic earning per share (S048) (1o
VIL OTHER IMSCLOSURE

1. Transactions with related parties

b Related partics

Organizalions Relatisn=hip

Thien Mam FPeoduulf Technolagy Company Limited Subsidiary

Thien wam Edecation Investment Corporation Subsidiry

ahaviwe! Joint Stock Company Subsidiary

Sai Gen (68 Trading Business Development Corporation AfTiliated company

Compeny having the same members of the Board of

amed pariie Detis thie periand beginning of the vear
Mr. Bguyen Quang Hoa Other receivables 1. TR (e D) 32502 892000
{Chainman] Other payahbles 6B 2744872 .
Sai Cion 168 Trading Business
Development Carporation Short-tenm receivables 320447 287 L110. 159,338
Mdvance from cusiomers FDH6T 108523
Ciher receivables . G0 O DAY
{Mher pavables TA74.000000
Thisen Nam Hoa Service Trading Joimt
Stock Company Short-term receivalles I7.258.588.000 2.416.232.500 :
Other receivables 5.720.000.000 3900000000
Id, Income of key manapers during the period jﬂ,
Quarter [V/2024 Quarter V2023
Mr. Nguyen Quang Hoa - Chairman - 20 O M0 “‘J
Mir. Ho Van Tuyen - Member of the Board of Managemens, Chairmian e
of the Audit Committee . 1 200,000, (e
Ms. Tran Thi Hien - Member of the Doard of Manngement . A0, TR, DM
Ms. Nguyen Tran Thao Hueag - Member of the Board of Management - 10 004D (a1
Mr. Nguyen Minh Thu - Depuy General Director 216,000,000 3RS A00.000
lr, Pham Viet Dat - Chiel Accountant - 154,000,000
Total QH;LW.IIH 1054 KHLOH
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Consolidated Financial Statement

Quarter IV Year 2024

I, Begment information

« Mainly inplemented in the terriiony of Vietnam

« Principal business activities: commercinl trading, trading iron and sicel

3, Bulsequent events

These are no material subsequent cvents which are required adjusiments or dsclosures in the Consolidated Financial
Stalements

6 i ¥hing City, January 15
e

4 " ir S 3
UET sa D KHEY

|+ \THIEN NA)

_-""'-_FH--
Nguyen Thi Tha Hien Le Thi Thanh Thao — Nguyen Yan Nghia
Preparer Chiel Accountant Geemeral Directar
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Annual

Report 2024

Thien Nam Trading - Import Export Joint Stock Company
Ho Chi Minh City, April 18, 2025

Legal Representative

General Director

CONG TY CO PHAN THUONG MAI XUAT NHAP KHAU THIEN NAM
Ma chidung kKhoan: THA

Tru sa: M-121 Ngd Gia TJ, Phudng 2, Quan 10, Tp.HCM
Nguyen Van Nghia Dién thoai: +84 28 3834 B98O
Fax: (02B8) 3834 B9&3
Website: thiennamgroup.yn
Email: info@thiennamgroupvn
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